LTDs

Ref: VTM /AR.19 25.05.2019

Corporate Relationship Dept - CRD
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited

Regd. Office: Floor 25, PJ Towers

Dalal Street.,

MUMBAI — 400 001.

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Listing agreement — Sending Physical copy of Annual report for Year
ended 31.3.2019 -reg.

Ref: Our Scrip code: 532893.

With reference to the above, we enclose herewith the Physical copy — in
Scan form of our Annual report for the year ended 31.03.2019. This is for your

records. The Form A has already been filed electronically in listing.bseindia.com.

This is for your records please
Thanking you,

o
Ps: Physical copy Annual report | MWM LIM;ED

ok R
© 8. PARAMASIVAM
Company Sec.s.any

it

Yours faithfully,

Chairman's Office : Thiagarajar Mills Premises, KAPPALUR - 625 008. Madurai, India.
Regd. Office : SULAKARAI, Virudhunagar - 626 003.

CIN No. : L17111TN1946PLC003270 Phone : 91-452-2482595 (4 lines)
TIN No. : 33495800034 91-4549-280591 / 280620
CST No. : 493901 Dt. 05.10.1957 Fax :91-452-2482590 / 2486085

PAN No. : AAACV3775E Email : office@tmills.com
vtac@vtmill.com



VTM i)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Thiru T. Kannan
Dr. (Smt) Uma Kannan
Thira K. Thiagarajan
Thiru RM. Somasundaram
Thiru A. Mariappan

Thiru M. Murugesan
Thiru T.N. Ramanathan
Thiru K. Vethachalam

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
Thire T. Kannan

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Thiru M. Ramanathan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Thiru 8. Paramasivam

AUIMTORS

M/s. CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants - Chennai.

BANKERS
State Bank of India
IDBI Bank Lid.
Standard Chartered Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE
Sulakarai
Virudhunagar.

CIN: LI7T11IITNI946PLC003270




VTM oimen

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy Second Annual General Meeting of the Members of
the Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar
on Monday, 17" day of June, 2019 at 12.00 Noon to transact the following business:

AGENDA

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31°
March, 2019 and the Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended on that date and the
reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

To declare adividend on equity shares.

To appoint a Director in the place of Sri. K. Thiagarajan, who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS :

4,

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161 and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) Mr. T.N. Ramanathan, (DIN 02561794), who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the company on and from April 01, 2019, whose office expires at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the company has received a notice in
wrifing proposing his candidature for the office of the Director be and 15 hereby
appointed as Director of the Company™.

“FURTHER Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with
Schedule I'V and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules framed thereunder and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, inciuding any statutory modifications or re
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, Mr. TN Ramanathan, (DIN 02561794),
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for an initial term
of 5 years commencing from 01.04.2019 and he is not Liable to retire by rotation”.
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To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED that subject to provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Rule

14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable

provisions thereon, the fees of Rs.40,000/- payable to the Cost Auditor for auditing the
cost records and furnishing of Report thereon for the Financial Year 2019-20 as

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby ratified.

NOTES:

1.

The Explanatory Statement pursoant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
which sets out details relating to Resolutions at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
Proxy/Proxies to attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/ Proxies need
not be amember of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith.
Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by
an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Electronic copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company inter
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Stip and
Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with
the Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any
member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not
registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice, indicating the
process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is
being sent in the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting will also be
available on the Company's website www,vtmill.com for their download. The
physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's

Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal
business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication,

b3
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members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon
making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the
shareholders may also send requests to the Company's investor email id:
complianceofficer@vtmill.com,

L. BMPORTANTNOTES:

1.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will
remain closed from 06.06.2019 to 15.06.2019 (both days inclusive) for annual
closing.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013,
which sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, ts annexed
hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
Proxy/Proxies to attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/Proxies
need not be amember of the Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent
herewith, Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must
be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank
particulars registered against their respective depository accounts will be
used by the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars
cannot act on any request recerved directly from the Members holding shares 1n
electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such
changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members.
Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of either registering bank
particulars or changing bank particulars already registered against their respective
folios for payment of dividend are requested to write to the Company.

Members are requested to note that the dividends not encashed or remaining
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid
Dividend Account shall be transferred u/s, 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
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Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 125 of
the Companties Act, 2013. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the
Act and IEPF Rules, all shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for
seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified
by the MCA.

The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend have been
transferred to IEPF may claim the shares or apply for refund by making an
application to IEPF Authority in Form IEPF-5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in)
along with requisite fee as decided by it from time to time. The Member/Claimant
can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules.

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the financial year
ended 31.03.2012 are requested to make their claim on or before 20.07.2019 being
the due date for such transfer. The members can make a claim with the Company
in respect of the dividends of subsequent years that are lying in the Unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company.

Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and the IEPF Rules, all such shares in respect
of which dividends have not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or
more are also required to be transferred to IEPE. The Company is taking steps for
sending individual notices to the concerned shareholders and for publishing of a
public notice to shareholders under the IEPF Rules in this regard.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission
of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the
PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details
to the Company.

Details required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking
appomtment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part
of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their
appointment/re-appointment.
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10.

11.
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13.
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Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the year 2018-19 is being sent to all the
members whose email [Ds are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member has requested fora
hard copy of the same.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the 72™ Annual General Meeting of the Company
inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the members whose email 1Ds are
registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication
purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For
members who have not registered their ¢mail address, physical copies of the
Notice of the 72 Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form 1s
being sent in the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 72* Annual General Meeting and
the Annual Report for the year 2018-19 will also be available on the Company's
website www.vtmill.com for their download.

The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the
Company's Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during
normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for
e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in
physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost. For any
communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's
investor email id: complianceofficer@vtmill.com.

Voting through electronic means

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rule 20

of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is

pleased to provide members' facility to exercise their right to vote at the 72

* Annuval

General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted

through e-Voting Services provided by Karvy.




VTM i)

Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are as under :

A)

In case a Member receives an email from Karvy (for Members whose email Ids are

registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s):

i)

1it)

vi)

vii)

Launch internet browser by typing the URL: hitps://evoting karvy.com in the
address bar and click on “Enter”. The Home screen will be displayed then click on
shareholders icon in the homepage.

Enter the login credentials (i.e. User 1D and password mentioned overleaf). Your
Folio No./DPID — Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already
registered with Karvy for E-voting, you can use your existing User ID and
password for casting your vote.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN™.

You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise minimum
characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric
(0-9) and a special character (@#8$.¢tc). The system will prompt you to change
your password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID. etc.,
on first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to
retrieve password and that you take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

You need to login again with the new credentials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event
Number for VTM Limited.

On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of
votes) as on the cut-off Date under each of the heading of the resolution and cast
your vote by choosing the “FOR/ AGAINST” option or alternatively, you may
partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total
number 1 “FOR/AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your iotal
shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You may also choose the option “ABSTAIN”
and the shares held will not be counted under either head. Option “FOR” implies
assent to the resolution and “AGAINST” implies dissent to the resolution.
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viii) Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process

ix)

X)

X1)

Xii)

B)

separately for each of the folios/demat accounts.

Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not desire to
cast your vote on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained.

Youmay then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submt™

A confirmation box will be displayed Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the
voting period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the
Resolution(s).

Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.} are also
required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution /
Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly
authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail ID:  vtmlimited. scrutinizer
@XKarvy.com. They may also upload the same in the E-voting module in their login. The
scanned image of the above mentioned documents should be in the naming format
“Corporate Name EVENTNO.”

In case a Member receives physical copy of the Annual General Meeting Notice by post
{for members whose email Ids are not registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) can also vote using e-voting method.

i. User ID and initial password are provided overleaf.

ii.  Please follow all steps from Sr.No.(i) to {xii} as mentioned in (A) above, to cast
your vote,

2. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote
electronically shall not be allowed to vote again at the Meeting.

3.  In case of any query pertaining to E-voting, please visit Help & FAQ's section
available at Karvy's website https://evoting karvy.com.

4.  The facility for voting through electronic means (Ballot) shall be made available
at the Annuai General Meeting (AGM) and the members attending AGM who
have not cast their vote by remote E-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM
through “Ballot™.

N




[VT LIMITED}

=

The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM,
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr.1.B. Harikrishna, Practising Company
Secretary {(Membership No.5302) as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their
shares in the equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date), being, 10" June,
2019.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories at the close of business hours on
10" June, 2019 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-voting/ballot.

The e-voting period starts on 12" June, 2019 (9.00 am) and ends on 15" June, 2019
{6.00 pm) '

Any person who becomes member of the Company after despatch of the Notice of
the meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User Id and
password in the manner as mentioned below

a.  1fthe mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No./ DPID -
Chient ID, the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DPID - Client ID to
+91-9212993399 Example for NSDL: MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678

Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678
Example for Physical: MYEPWD<SPACE> XXXX 1234567890

b, 1f e-mail address or mobile number of the Member is registered against
Folio No./DPID-Client ID, then on the home page of
https://evoting karvy.com, the member may click “Forgot Password™ and
enter Folio No. or DPID - Client 1D and PAN to generate a password.

¢.  Membermay Cali Karvy's Toll free number [-800-3454-001

d.  Membermay send an e-matil request to evoting(@karvy.com
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10. However, if you are already registered with Karvy for E-voting, you can use your
existing User ID and password for casting your vote.

11.  The Scrutimizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from
the conclusion of AGM shall unblock the votes cast by remote E-voting and
Ballot, in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and will make a Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in
favour or against, forthwith to the Chairman of the meeting.

12. The Results on resolations shall be declared at or after the Annual General
Meeting of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the
Annual General Meeting date subject to receipt of the requisite nurber of votes in
favour of the Resolutions.

13. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on
website of the Company (www.vtmill.com) and on Karvy's website
(https://evoting.karvy.com). The results shall simultaneously be communicated
to Stock Exchanges.

t4. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statement shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except
Sundays, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL
BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

ftem No. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors of the Company vide its circular resolution dated 01.04.2019, appointed
Mr.T.N. Ramanathan {(DIN 02561794), as an Additional Director {Non-Executive
Independent) on Board of the Company. In terms of the provistons of Section {6i(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. T.N.Ramanathan holds office up to the date of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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Brief Resume and other details of M, TN. Ramanathan:

Mr.T.N. Ramanathan, son of Mr.T.B. Nagasamy, aged 65 years, a post graduate in
Commerce (M.Com) from Madurai University. He is M.B.A with specialization in
Marketing. He completed B.L from Madras University with First Rank. He is a retired
[AS Officer having served in various Government Posts in and out of Tamilnadu.
Mr. T.N. Ramanathan does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

He has given his consent to act as a Director of the Company, along with a certificate
stating that he is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in the Company in
terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further, he has submitted the
declaration as required pursuant to the Section 149(7) of the Act stating that he meets the
criteria of independence as provided in sub section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Mr.T.N. Ramanathan has also declared that he is not debarred from holding
the office of the director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority.

As per the proviso to Sec. 160 which is made effective from 09.02.2018 the
requirements of deposit of amount shall not apply in case of appointment of Independent
Director/Director. Since Mr.T.N. Ramanathan is an Independent Director of the
Company, there is no requirement of submission of requisite deposit.

The Board considers that his experience and expertise would be of immense benefit to
the Company and that it is desirable to avail services of Mr.T.N.Ramanathan as an
Independent Director of the Company.

The Board of Directors, therefore, recommend the Ordinary Resolution as set out in
Item No. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the shareholders, as in the opinion of the
Board, Mr.T.N. Ramanathan, (DIN 02561794), fulfils the conditions for appointment as
an Independent Director for a term of five years commencing from 01.04.2019 and in
terms of Section 149(13), he is not liable for retirement by rotation.

Except Mr T.N. Ramanathan, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, in the resolution set out at Item
No 4.

10
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Item No, 5:

The Board, at its meeting held on 22™ April 2019, appointed Mr.M. Kannan, Practising
Cost Accountant, having Membership No 9167, as Cost Auditor of the Company, in
terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and fixed a sum of
Rs.40,000/- as remuneration payable to him, for the financial year 2019-2020.

The remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the
Board, is required to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company, as per the
requirements of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with Section
148(3)ofthe Act.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at {tem No.5.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution, as set outin item No.5, for
ratification by the shareholders of the Company.

Kappalur, Madurai.
April 22, 2019.

By order of the Board
T. Kannan
Chairman

L L S O
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH, 2019.

To the Members of VI'M Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 72* Annual Report along with the Audited
statement of accounts for the year ended 31" March, 2019,

Adoption of Financial Statements under fnd AS:

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16" February,
2015 relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has
adopted “Ind AS” with effect from 1* April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for
the year 2018-19 have been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accountin g
Standards) Rules, 2015.

Operating & Financial Performance Profits, Dividends & Retention

Rs. in Lakhs.
2018-19 2017-18
Turnover 15980 16463
Profit before Depreciation 2082 1888
(after interest)
Less: Depreciation 682 683
Profit after Depreciation 1400 1205
Less: Provision for Taxation:
Current Year 347 432
Deferred Tax 32 (5)
R Y23 — 427
Profit after Tax 1021 778
Add: Amount brought forward 788 4567
Available tor appropriation 180% 5345
Appropriation -
Transfer to General Reserve 600 4500
Income Tax Refund of earlier vears - (39%)
Dividend @ Re.0.75 per share 302 302
Income Tax on Dividend 62 61
i 15T I SE—— 363
Changes in Deferred Tax recognized
directly in Equity ———- (257
Transfer from Other
Comprehensive Income {7 il
Retained profit carried forward 852 787 12 l
tothe followingyear } e} s
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During the year under review, the Company's performance has improved with a higher net
profit of Rs.1400 lakhs against Rs, 1205 lakhs (16% increase) even though there is a marginal
decrease in Turnover. The Company was able to register export turnover of Rs.5644.49 lakhs
representing 35.32% of the total turnover. The textile industry in the country witnessed stable
trading conditions during the year. Your Company was able to report better results as a result
ofimproved working efficiencies and waste minimization.

Appropriation to General Reserve

Considering the profitability and the available surplus, the Board of Directors desires to
appropriate a sum of Rs.600 lakhs to General Reserve.

Dividend

Considering the profits for the year and as recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board
of Directors is pleased to recommend a dividend of Re.0.90 per share 1.€.90% on Equity
Shares of Re.1/- each. The dividend together with dividend tax entails a cash outflow of
Rs.436.47 lakhs in the current year (previous year Rs.364 lakhs). If this is approved at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, dividend will be deposited with the bank within the
time prescribed and dividend will be paid to those who are Members of the Company as on
record date specified in this regard. The Book Closure period being 6" fune, 2019 to 15" June,
2019 (Both days inclusive) in respect of shares held electronically, dividend will be paid on the
basis of beneficial ownership as per details furnished by the depositories.

Extract of Annual Retuyvn :

The Extract of Annual Return is furnished in Form MGT-9 as per Annexure HI.
Associate Company:

The company does not have any body corporate as its Associate.
Change in the Nature of Business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.
Orders by Regulators or Courts

There were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Material Changes Affecting the Financials
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occumring between March 31, 2019 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

13
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an established internal contro} system designed to ensure proper
recording of financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls
and other regulatory and statutory compliances. Code on [nternal Control which require that
the Directors to review the effectiveness of internal controls and compliance controls,
financial and operational risks, risk assessment and management systems and related party
transactions, have been complied with. Self certification exercises are alse conducted by
which senior management certifies effectiveness of the internal control system, their
adherence to Code of Conduct and Company's policies for which they are responsible,
financial or commercial transactions, if any, where they have personal interest or potential
conflict ofinterest. Internal Audit has been conducted on periodical basis.

Company's Policies

Company's Policies on Corporate Social Responsibility, Remuneration, Employee Concern
(Whistle Blowing), the Code of Conduct applicable to Directors and Employees of the
Company and policies such as Insider Trading Code, Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code
and Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions required under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI {Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 have been complied with.

These Policies, the Code of Conduct and other policies/codes as referred above are available
on the Company's website www.vimill.com

ISO and 88 Certification
The Company's factory at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, Tamil Nadu has been certified ISO for

Quality Management System Standard and also holds a 58 Certification from AOTS Alumni
58 Forum of India and GOTS Certification for the manufacture of organic cotton fabrics.

Segmentwise performmance

The Company is primarily a manufacturer of textile products and is managed organizationally
as a single unit. Accordingly, the Company is a single business segment company.
Geographical (secondary) segment has been identified as domestic sales and exports as
detailed below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. lacs) % of Turnover
Export Sales 5644.49 35.32%
Domestic Sales 10,335.51 64.68%

14
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Industry Structure & Developments, Opportunities & Threats, Outlook, Risks &
Concerns

The Trade and Industry has fully tuned to the new GST regime and the initial hiccups seen
during the year of implementation have all been ironed out.  The GST regime has brought in
much needed compliance discipline to the trade channels.

During the year under review, export of grey fabrics from the country increased by 20%.

The Government is taking number of steps to improve the export competitiveness of the textile
industry. Your Company s concentrating in increasing its operational efficiency thus leading
to cost savings.

The power situation continues to be comfortable.

The Company is taking steps for development and implementation of risk management
policies. The element of risk that may threaten the company is the uncertainty in the overseas
market on which the company depends for its exports.

Further, in the domestic market there is a risk of competition from a large number of textile
units and the uncertainty of monsoon and its consequential impact on the demand scenario.

Your Directors look forward to the current year with hope and optimismn, they expect the
reform process in the economy will be accelerated by the Government which in turn will prove
positive for trade & industry.

Board of Directors:

The Board consists of 8 Directors with one Chairman and Managing Director, four Non-
Executive Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and one Woman Non-
Executive Director.

Mr. L.N.V. Subramanian who was appointed as an Independent Director for a period of five
years from 01.04.2014 retired from the Board on and from 01.04.2019 on the expiry of his
term of appointment on 31.03.2019.

Subject to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject
to approval by the members of the company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, the Board
appointed one Mr.T.N.Ramanathan as an Additional Director and also as Independent
Director of the Company as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
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and from 01" April 2019 for a period of five years as an Independent Director. He will not be
liable to retire by rotation under the provision 149(13) of the Compames Act.

Re-appoiniment of Independent Directors:

The shareholders at the EGM held on 13.03.2019 had re-appointed Sri.A.Mariappan,
Sri. M. Murugesan and Sri. RM.Somasundaram as Independent Directors of the company for
another term of five years commencing from 01.04.2019. They are not liable to retire by
rotation,

Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires a listed company to have a Managing
Director/CEOQ/Whole Time Director as one of the Key Managerial Personnel. In terms of the
provistons, Sri T. Kannan, the Charrman of the Company has been appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director duly recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors. He is already the Chairman and Managing Director of
M/s. Thiagarajar Mills Private Limmted and accordingly his remuneration is fixed in such a
way that the total remuneration from both companies put together does not exceed the limits as
prescribed u/s. 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of number and dates of meetings held by the Board and its Committees, attendance
of Directors and remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate
Governance Report.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereon,

Retirement of Directors by Rotation:

Sri. K. Thiagarajan, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment as a Director of the
Company. Being eligible, he is proposed to be re-appointed as Director of the Company.

Sri K. Thiagarajan holds a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and Business Management from
Warwick University, UK. He is the Executive Director of M/s. Thiagarajar Mills Private
Limited. He is also the Exceutive Committee Member of the Cotton Textile Export Promotion
Council, Mumbai. He is having experience in Textile Industry for a peried of 8 years. As such,
he possesses knowledge and experience in the field oftextile industry,
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Non-Executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not
disqualified to act as a Non-Executive Independent Director in compliance with the
provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that
the Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies
Act, 2013 making them eligible to act as Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Non-
Executive Independent Directors have convened ameetingon 31.01.2019.

To comply with the amended regulations as provided in Regulation 17(10) of the SEBI
{LODR) Regulations, the Board reviewed the evaluation process by applying the provisions
of Section 149 and Schedule IV to the Companies Act and the regulations as provided under
the SEBI Regulations in respect of the Independent Directors of the Company with the
following criteria;

¢ the performance of the Independent Directors

+ fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified under the Companies Act, 2013
and regulations under SEBI Regulations,

The Independent Directors who attended the meeting of the Board did not participate in the
discussion in respect of the evaluation of the Independent Director. There was sufficient
gquorum excluding the Independent Directors during the time of evaluation.

Code of Conduct

All Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Sentor Management of the Company have
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of
the Company. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website www.vtmill.com.
All Directors have confirmed compliance with provisions of Section 164 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
provisions as referred i SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31st March,
2019 and state that :
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in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively and
the Company has adopted proper policies and procedures for ensuring orderly and
efficient conducting of the business:

a)  Themanagement designed and implemented policies with respect to adherence to
accounting standards as a general requirement applied by a Company in preparing
and presenting financial statements.

b}  The management evolved a sound system for regular evaluation of the nature and
extent of the risks to which the Company 1s exposed and to control risk
appropriately.

¢)  The board ensured the effective financial controls, including the maintenance of
proper accounting records and the Company is not unnecessarily exposed to
avoidable financial risks. They also contribute to the safeguarding of assets,
including the prevention and detection of fraud. The financial information used
within the business and for publication is reliable.

The cost accounts and records as specified by the Central Government under sub
-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and as required by the Company
are made and maintained,

the Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

18
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Key Managerial Personnetl
The following persons have been appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in
compliance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a)  Sri T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director

b}  SriR. Krishnan, Chief Financial Officer (upto 31.01.2619) and
¢)  Sri.M.Ramanathan, Chief Financial Officer (from 01.02.2019)
d)  Srt S. Paramasivam, Company Secretary

During the Financial Year, Mr.R Krishnan, Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) of the company
resigned on January 31, 2019 and one MrM.Ramanathan has been appointed as Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company and his appointment has been made as
recommended by the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors.

Carporate Governance

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance. During
the year under consideration, the Company had an Eight members Board of Dhrectors
consisting of one Chairman and Managing Director, four Non-Executive Independent
Directors, three Non-Executive Directors of which one is a Woman Director.

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required under Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V' to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is given separately as Annexure 1 and forms part of this Report of the Directors. The
Corporate Governance Certificate for the year ended on March 31, 2019 issued by
M/s.CNGSN & Associates LLP, Auditors of the Company, is also attached as part of Annexure
T and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

The Company has tormulated Insider Trading Code and Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code
in terms of Regulation 9 read with Schedule B and Regulation 8 read with Schedule A of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 respectively and provided in the
company's website at www.vtmill.com. Mr S. Paramasivam, Company Secretary, is the
Compliance Officer responsible for compliance with the Insider Trading procedures. As there
was no msider tradmg in the securities of the company, the company has not reported any
Insider Trading details to the Stock Exchange.
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Sri T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company has given his certificate
under Regulation 17(8) read with part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding the annual financial statements for the
year ended on 31st March, 2019 to the Board of Directors which is attached as Annexure [X.
The Chairman has given his certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V
of the above said Regulations in compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2019, which is attached as Annexure V111 and forms a part of this Report
ofthe Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors and satisfies the provisions of
Section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Commiitee now comprises Mr.RM.
Somasundaram as Chairman and Mr.A. Mariappan and Mr.M.Murugesan as Members.

Sri L.N.V. Subramanian who was a member of Audit Committee ceased to be a Director from
the Board onand from 01.04.2019.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The details of all related party
transacttons are placed periodically before the Audit Committee. During the year there were
no instances where the Board had not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee,
The Company has in place a vigil mechanism, details of which are available on the Company’s
website www.vtmill.com

The Audit Committee bas also been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing
risk managenent assessment and minimization procedures, implementing and monitoring the
risk management plan and identifving, reviewing and mitigating all elements of risks which
the Company may be exposed to.

The Audit Commuttee is empowered with monitoring the appointment of Key Managerial
Personnel.

The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number and dates of meetings held,
attendance of the Directors and remuneration patd to them are given separately in the attached
Corporate Governance Report.

B
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Evaluation of the Board of s own performance, Committees of the Board and
Individual Directors:

The Board reviewed and evaluated its own performance from the following angles:
. Company Performance

» Strategy and Implementation

. Risk Management

v Corporate ethics

. Performance of the Individual Directors

. Performance of the Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remnuneration
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responstbility
Committee

The Board also evaluated the performance of the above referred Committees and concluded
that the Commitiees continued to operate effectively, with {ull participation from all members
and executive management of the Company.

The Board upon evaluation considered that the Board is well balanced in terms of diversity of
experience. The Board noted that all Directors have understood the opportunities and risks to
the Company's strategy, and are supportive of the direction articulated by the management
team towards improvement. Corporate responsibility, ethics and compliance are taken
seriously, and there is a good balance between the core values of the Company and the interests
of shareholders.

The Directors also expressed their safisfaction in all the above areas considering the
Company's performance in all fronts viz., New Product Development, Sales and Marketing,
International business, Employee relations and compliance with statutory requirements.

Related Party Transactions:

During the year 2018-19, the company has entered into contracts or arrangements for a period
of five years from (11.04.2019 to 31.03.2024 with such number of related parties with the
approval by the Board of Directors and the members of the company at the Angual General
Meeting wherever necessary in respect of the following:
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1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials

2. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind
3. Leasing of property of any kind

4. Availing or rendering of any services

5. Obligations

The details in respect of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm's length
basis carried on with the related parties have been furnished in Annexure V.

Corpeorate Social Responsibility Committee

A Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 with Sri T.
Kannan as Chairman and M/s. K. Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaram, Directors of the
Company as Members.

The Committee met twice during the year on 19.10.2018 and 31.01.2019, to review the CSR
policies, recommend for contributions for CSR Activities carried out during the year and
recommend for accumulation of balance amount to be spent in subsequent years in view of the
larger projects to be undertaken by the educational institution to which the company is
contributing for CSR activities.

The Committee considered the social activitics as referred in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act and recognizes that its operations impact a wide community of the public for promoting
health care including preventive health care and imparting education for uplifting the social
status of the public. In structuring its approach to various aspects of Corporate Social
Respousibility, the Company takes account of guidelines and statements issued by various
regulatory bodies. Social, environment and ethical matters are reviewed by the Committee
including the impact of such matters that may have on the Company’s management of risk.

The Company finalized the manner of implementation of the CSR Policy and spent a sum of
Rs. 1.18 lakhs towards conducting eye camp for the public nearby the mills as a preventive
health care activity and accumulated a sum of Rs. 28.27 lakhs as unspent in view of
undertaking infrastructure enhancement projects by the educational institution to which the
company is contributing for CSR activities. The details of the project, amount of estimates and
the amount spent for the projects undertaken and the unspent amounts has been shown in
Annexure VIL

The CSR policy is available on the Company's website www.vimitl.com




\
VTM i

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Commttee, number and dates
of meetings held, attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given
separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Prevention of Sexval Harassment:

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
with three employees and a NGO representative and Smt. Uma Kannan, Director of the
Company is the Adviser to the Committee. The Board also has approved the prevention of
Sexual Harassment Policy and all employees especially women employees were made aware
of the Policy and the manner in which complaints could be lodged. The Commitiee has
submitted its Annaal Report and the same has been approved by the Board.

The following is reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

1. No. of Complaints of sexual harassment received NIL N
2. No. of Complaints disposed off during the year NIL
3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days NIL
4. No. of awareness programme conducted 1
5. Nature of action taken by the employer Not
§ Applicable

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 24,2014 and ason 31st
March, 2019, Sri RM. Somasundaram is the Chairman, an Independent Director and
M/s. T. Kannan, K. Thiagarajan and A. Mariappan are Members of the Committee. The
constitution satisfies the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as the
SEBI Regulations. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of this Committee.

During the vear, the Committee met twice on 27.04.2018 and 31.01.2019, the first one for
reviewing the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the second one for considering and
accepting the resignation of Mr.R.Krishnan as Chief Financial Officer and appointment of
Mr.M.Ramanathan as Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com
and annexed as forming part of this report as Annexure X,
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The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number
and dates of meetings held, attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are
given separately inthe attached Corporate Governance Report.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted on 25.04.2014 consisting of
Sri L.N.V. Subramanian as Chairman and Sri T. Kannan as Member. The Company Secretary
is the Secretary of the Committee.

Sri L.N.V. Subramanian ceased to be a Director of the company on and from 01.04.2019.

The Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 has been amended to have three
Directors as Members of the Committee with one Independent Director Member.
Accordingly, the Committee has been reconstituted consisting of Sri. T.N.Ramanathan as
Chairman and Sti. T.Kannan and Sri K. Vethachalam as members of the Committee.

The Committec has delegated the responsibility for share transfers and other routine share
maintenance work to the Company Secretary and to M/s.Karvy Fintech Private Limited, the
Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. All requests for dematerialisation and
rematerialisation of shares, transfer or transmission of shares and other share maintenance
matters are completed within 30 days of receipt of valid and complete documents. The
Committee approved all activities through Circular Resolutions and all those Circular
Resolutions were placed and discussed at the Board meetings. The Committee also reports to
the Board on matters relating to the shareholding pattern, shareholding of major shareholders,
insider trading compliances, movement of share prices, redressal of complaints, Reports on
SCORES of SEBI and all compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing
agreement with Stock Exchanges.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company's shares
are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted is
INE222F01029. The details of sharcholding pattern, distribution of shareholding and share
prices are mentioned separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Auditors

fn terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereon, M/s CNGSN &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Regn. No. 0049155/8200036) have
been appointed as Auditors of the Company by the members at their meeting heldon 23" June,

ig
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2017 and the Auditors have been appointed for a period of five years from the conclusion of
70" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 75" Annual General Meeting. The
Auditors have already submitted certification u/s. 141 of the Compantes Act and Peer Review
Certificate in respect of their appointment as Auditors of the Company.

hecretarial Audit

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by the Secretarial Auditor, MrM.K.
Bashyam, Practicing Company Secretary, in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor's Report along with Secretarial Compliance
Report (as required under the amended SEBI Regulations) is attached as Annexure II and
torms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no gualifications or observations or
remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report.

Fixed Deposits
The Company has not accepied any deposits from the public and as such, there are no
outstanding deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

The company does not have any deposit which is not in compliance with the Companies Act,
2013.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not granted anv inter-corporate loan, given guarantee or provided security
for availing loan by any other company. However the company has invested its funds in such
number of companies and in such number of shares and securities 1n other bodies corporate as
referred to in Notes No. 06 and 11 of the Balance Sheet.

In compliance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, loans to employees bear interest
atapplicable rates,

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Forcign Exchange Parnings and
Dutpo

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and OQutgo required under section 134(3)}(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure I'V and forms a part of this
Report of the Directors.
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Particulars of Emplovees

The prescribed particulars of Employees required under Section 134(3)(g) read with Rule 5 of

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
attached as Annexure VI and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no
employees drawing remuneration more than Rs. 102 Lakhs per annum or Rs.8,50,000/- per

month.

Annexures forming a part of this Report of the Directors

The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be

disclosed are annexed herewith and forms a part of this Report of the Directors :

L

IL

HI.

IV.

V.

VL

VI

VIH.

IX.

Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate on Corporate  Governance
by the Auditor of the Company.

Secretarial Audit Report and Secretarial Compliance Report
Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9,

Particulars on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

Form AOC-2 for material contracts with Related Parties,
Ratio of remuneration and Particulars of Employees.
Annual Report on CSR spending.

Chairman & Managing Director's Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with
Part D of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 on comphance of Code of Conduct,

Certificate by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
under Regulation 17(8), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 on Financial Statements.

Remuneration Policy.
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Appreciation

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all
employees in achieving and sustaining excellence in all areas of the business. Your Directors
thank the Shareholders, customers, suppliers and bankers and other stakeholders for their

continuous support to the Company.

Kappalur, Madurai. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
April 22, 2019. T. KANNAN
. 1
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Management Discussion & Analysis:

Financial Performance:

The company's Sales Turnover has marginally come down by 483 lakhs from Rs.16,463
Lakhs to Rs.15,980 Lakhs registering a decrease of 2,93%. The Profit after depreciation has
increased by Rs.196 lakhs from Rs.1,2035 Lakhs to Rs. 1,401 Lakhs. In spite of increase in
profit, the current tax provision (including deferred tax liability) has come down from 427
lakhs to 378 lakhs in view of lower rate of tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act.
Accordingly, the Profit after tax has increased from Rs. 779 lakhs to 1022 lakhs as set out in the
Directors' Report.

Key Financial Ratios:

Ratios 2017-18 2018-19 % Change
Debtors Turnover 99 days 113 days 14%
Inventory Turnover - | 60 72 20%
Days

Interest Coverage 16.47 13.33 -19%
Ratio-times

Current Ratio 10.68 13.64 27.71%
Debt Equity Ratio 0.06 .04 -33.33%
QOperating Margin 7.79 9.48 21.55%
Net Profit Margin 4.59 6.13 55%
Return on Net Worth 5.17 4.18 23.52%

1}  Increase in Current Ratio is due to increase in Inventories and Interest income
receivable,

2)  The Debt Equity Ratio has come down due to repayment of Long Term Liabilities and
the addition of retained earnings of current year to Sharcholders Equity.

3)  Increase in Net Profit ratio is due to marginal decrease in Turnover and increase in other
income.

Industry Structure and Developments:
Industry structure and developments has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

Internal Control Systems has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.

Human Resources:

The Company has a recruitment and training policy to meet its HR needs. The Company's
performance on the Industrial Relations front continues to be quite satisfactory.

Cautionary Statement:

Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” may be forward
looking and are as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the
actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future
performance and outlook —the ever present risk factors. 28




Y
(VTM u',-\-imfi:zj

Annexure |:  Corporate Governance Report 2018-19
THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Good corporate governance is about maximizing shareholder value on a sustainable basis
while ensuring fairness to all stakeholders, customers, vendors, investors, employees,
government and society.

The Company believes in continuous geod corporate governance and always strives to follow
the highest standards of ethics, transparency and integrity to improve the performance at all
fevels.

The company is committed to good Corporate govemance and has comptied in all material
aspects with the requirements specified in Listing agreement with stock exchange.

1. A Report on Corporate Governance is given below and Auditors certificate in
compliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance is enclosed separately.

Foa

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1, Compaesition and Category of Directors

The Board of Directors as on 22" April 2019 consists of Eight Directors of which there
are One Executive Director, Three Non-Executive Directors and Four Independent Directors,
and thus it is in compliance with SEBI Regulations. The details of the composition of the
Board of Directors are as follows:

Name of the Director Category Particulars
Sri T.Kannan Chairman and Executive Director
Managing Director
Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan Director Non-Executive Woman
Director

Sri K. Thiagarajan Director Non-Executive Director
Sri RM.Somasundaram Director Independent Director
Sri A, Marnappan Director Independent Director
Sri M.Murugesan Director Independent Director
Sri TN .Ramanathan* Director Independent Director
Sri K. Vethachalam Director Non-Executive Director

* With effect from 01.04.2019

Sri L.N.V. Subranianian, an Independent Director ceased to be a Director of the Company
on and from 01.04.2019 on completion of his tenure of appointment as Independent
Director. His retirement was at the end of his tenure.




VTM ey

2.2,

Deiails of the Directors

The current composition of the Board of Directors complies with the provisions of SEBI{
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013,

In the present Board, Sri T. Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director, Dr.(Smt.) Uma
Kannan and Sri. K. Thiagarajan are related to each other.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member on more than 10 Committees as per the
requirements of Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, Necessary disclosures have been made by the
Directors in this regard.

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the performance of the Company,
and also meets as and when to transact any special business that may arise.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149(10) of the Companies Act 2013, the
following independent directors were reappointed for a period of five ycars on and from
01.04.2019 as Independent Directors of the company by the members of the company at
their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 13" March, 2019;

1. SriR.M.Somasundaram
2. SriA. Mariappan
3. SriM. Murugesan

Sri T.N. Ramanathan, Retd. 1AS., has been recommended and appointed as Director of
the Company on and from 01.04.2019 subject to the approval by the Members of the
Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting as Independent Director for a period
of Five Years on and from01.04.2019.

Sri.K.Thiagarajan Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment as a Director
of the Company. He is proposed to be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The
personal information about Sri. K. Thiagarajan given as below:

Sri.K.Thiagarajan was appointed as Director of the Company on 23" August, 2013. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and Business Management from Warwick
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University, UK. He is the Executive Director of M/s. Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited.
He is also the Executive Committee Member of the Cotton Textile Export Promotion
Council, Mumbai. He is having experience in Textile Industry for a pertod of 8 years. As
such he possesses knowledge and experience in the field of Textile industry.

Sri.K. Thiagarajan holds 153600 equity shares in the Company.

All Directors have certified that the disqualifications mentioned under sections 164, 167
and 169 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to them. Independent Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors mentioned
in Schedule [V of the Companies Act, 201 3 and that they are not disqualified to actas an
Independent Directors in compliance with the provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors’ Criteria

The Board of Directors confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the criteria in
respect of their independency as referred under the provisions of Section 149 and
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and under the regulations referred in the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations as amended from time to time.

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct laid down by the company, which has been adopted by the Board
of Directors, is applicable to the Directors and all employees of the Company. This
Code of Conduct emphasizes the Company's commitment to compliance with the
highest standards of legal and ethical behaviour. The Code of Conduct is available on the
website of the Company www.vimilL.com under heading 'Investor Information'.
All Directors and senior management have adhered to the Code of Conduct of the
Company during the year and have signed declarations of compliance to the Code of
Conduct. The declaration signed by Chairman and Managing Director, is given
separately in the Annual Report,

List of skills/expertise or competence of Board of Directors:

The Board comprises of Members who have varied skills, experience and knowledge
to effectively govern and direct the organisation. The skills and attributes of the
Board can be broadly categorised as follows:

Governance skills (skills directly relevant to performing the Board's key functions);
Industry skills (skills relevant to the textile industry):

Financial skills {Skills relevant to Treasury and Banking Management)
Accounting skills (Skills relevant to Accounting Functions) _ E
Adminstrative skills (Skills relevant to Administrative tunctions) 31
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Details of listed entities where the Directors of the Company are
Directors and category of Directorship:

Directors Listed Entities Category of Directorship
Sri. T Kannan TVS Motor Company Limited Independent Director
Sri. T.Kannan Sundaram Brake Linings Limited fndependent Director

2.5 Shareholding of Directors and Key Munagerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2019 following shares of the Company were held by Directors:

Name Designation No. of shares
S5ri.T. Kannan CMD 585600
Sri.K. Thiagarajan Director 153600
5ri RM. Somasundaram Director 60000

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company.

2.6. Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review four Board Meetings were held and sitting fees have been
paid to the Directors as detailed herein:-

Director Name 27.04.18 01.08.18 19.10.18 31.01._19 Total

{Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Uma Kannan 3004 3000 3000 3000 12000
K. Thiagarajan 3000 3000 3000 300 12000
RM.Somasundaram 3000 3000 3000 3000 12000
A. Mariappan 3600 3000 3000 3000 12000
L.N.V.Subramanian 3000 3000 - - 6000
M. Muarugesan 3000 - 3000 3600 S000
K Vethachalam 3000 - 3000 6000
TOTAL 21000 15000 18000 15000 69000

No sitting fees paid to 8ri T. Kannan as he is the Chairman and Managing Director.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Board of Directors and attended all meetings of
the Board of Directors.
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2. 7 Board Comuiittees

In line with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
(LODR) 2015, the Company has constituted Audit Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee.

The composition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are
mentioned later in this Report.

2.8, Directorships and Committee membership in other companies

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of
more than 5 Committees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 20157 across all listed companies in India of which he
is a Director.

Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies. None of the Independent
Directors are whole-time directors in any listed Company.Directorships and Membership of
Commuttees in other companies held by Directors as on March, 31, 2019 and the Attendance of
the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting is given below:

Names of the Directors Categ | No. of Attend-ance | No.of Other | No. of Whether
ory Board at the last Director-ships | membersh | Chairman/
Meetings AGM held in companies | ips in Member
attended 062262018 | other than Board
VTM Commit-
tees

Thiru T. Kannan ED 4 = g* 5 Chairman

¥ 3 Member
Thira K. Thiagarajan NED 4 J 3 3 Member
Dr.(Smt.} Uma Kannan NED 4 3 -
Thire RM, NEID 3 v 3 2 Chairman
Somasundaram 1 Member
Thiry LNV, NEID 2 - | Chairman
Subramanian {upto | Member
31.03.2019)
Thirs A, Martappan NEID 4 7 i Chairman

3 Member
Thiru M. Murugesan NEID 3 i . -
Thiru K. Vethachalam NED 3 6 - -
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3.1

3.2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Constitation and Composition; The Audit Commitice was constituted during the financial
year 2001-2002, and reconstituted in view of the retirement of 8ri L.N.V. Subramanian as
director of the company. Accordingly, the Audit Committee consists of following Directors
as the members

Director Category
Thiru RM. Somasundaram Chairman
Thiru M. Murugesan Member
Thiru A. Mariappan’ Member

The Chairman and Managing Director is permanent invitee in all meetings. The
Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee. All Directors are
financially literate and Mr.A. Mariappan has accounting and related financial
management expertise. Besides, Mr.RM. Somasundaram also has sound technical
knowledge and has finance expertise. The Statutory Auditors are invited to the
meetings to discuss with the Directors the scope of audit, their comments and
recommendation on the accounts, records, risks, internal procedures and internal
controls of the Company.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the
areas mentioned under Part C of the Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Board has also included in the terms of reference of the Audit
Commitiee, the monitoring, implementing and review of risk management plan as
required under Regulation 18 and as per Parl C (Role of Audit committee) of
Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee therefore
include review of financial reporting process and all financial results, statements
and disclosures and recommending the same to the Board, reviewing the internal
audit reports and discussing the same with the internal auditors, reviewing internal
conirol systems and procedures, to meet the statutory auditors and discuss their
findings, their scope of audit, post andit discussion, adequacy of internal audit
functions, audit qualifications, if any, appointment / removal and remuneration of
auditors, changes in accounting policies and practices, reviewing approval and
disclosure of all related party transactions, reviewing with the management, the
performance of the statutory and internal auditors and their remuneration,
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compliance with listing agreements/ SEBI{LODR)Regulations, and other legal
requirements and the Company's financial and risk management plan and policies
and its implementation, disaster recovery policies and compliance with statutory
requirements.

3.3. Internal Audit: The Internal Audit Department of the Company is carrying the
internal audit periodically.

3.4. Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held :

Date of Meeting
Director Name 27.04.18 01.68.18 19.10.18 31.01.19 Total
(Rs.) (Rs.} {Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.)
RM .Somasundaram 3000 3000 3000 3006 12000
A. Mariappan 3000 3000 3000 3000 | 12000
L.N.V.Subramanian 3000 3008 6000
TOTAL 6060 2000 90030 4000 300600

4. Remuneration to Directors :
Total Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the
Board and Committees during the year ended March 31, 2019is given below :

Sitting Fees

Name of the Director (For Board & Committee
Meetings)
Thiru T. Kannan (Chairman and Managing -
Director)

Thiru K. Thiagarajan Rs.24000/-
Thiru RM. Somasundaram Rs.39000/-
Thiru L.N.V, Subramanian Rs.12000/-
Thiru A, Mariappan Rs.33000/-
Thiru M. Murugesan Rs.12000/-
Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan Rs.12000/-
Thiru K. Vethachalam Rs. 6000/-
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Sa. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constifution and Composition: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
constituted on April 25, 2014 in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements} Regulations, 2015,

Sri.RM. Somasundaram an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The
other members are Sri.T.Kannan, Sri. K. Thiagarajan, and Sri.A.Mariappan.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
cover all the areas mentioned under Schedule I Part D of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee therefore
include recommending a policy relating to remuneration and employment, terms of Whole
Time Directors and senior management personnel, adherence to the
remuneration/emplioyment policy as finaily approved by the Board of Directors, preparing the
criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as Directors or Senior Management of the
Company, preliminary evaluation of every Director's performance, Board diversity,
compliance of the Code for Independent Directors referred fo in Schedule 1V of the
Companies Act, 2013, compliance with the Company's Code of Conduct by Directors and
employees of the Company, reporting non-compliances to the Board of Directors,
recommending draft of the report required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnet) Rules, 2014 which will form part of the Directors
Report to Shareholders, monitor loans to employees and any other matters which the Board of
Directors may direct from time to time.

Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, two meetings of the Nomination
and  Remuneration Committee was held on 27.04.2018 and on 31.01.2019 which were
attended by all members. The sitting fee has been paid to the members of the Committee as
under:

The Attendance of the Directors at the Committee meetings and remuneration paid to them are

as under: -
Sitting Fees

Name of the Director (Committee Meeting)

Thiru RM.Somasundaram-Chairman Rs.6,000
Thiru T.Kannan-Meimber -

Thira A.Mariappan-Member Rs.6,000
Thiru K. Thiagarajan — Member Rs.6,000
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Remuneration Policy: During the year, the Committee reviewed the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
the policy has been approved by the Board of Directors.

The terms of reference ofthe Committee inter alia, include the following:
Succession planning of the Board of Directors, and Senior Management Employees;

Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent Pirectors
based on certain laid down criteria; identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key
Managerial Personnel, and to other Senior Management positions;

Formulate and review from time 1o time, the policy for selection and  appomtment of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their
remuneration;

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel based
on ¢ertain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the
Board of Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensurcs that the remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and that the remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short term and long term objectives of the Company.

Remuneration to Birectnrs:

Sri T. Kannan, the Chairman and Managing Director of the company is entitled to a
remuneration not exceeding 5% of the Net Profits as computed u/s. 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 and accordingly a sum of Rs.56.00 lakhs has been provided as rentuneration for the year
2018-19.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for every meeting of the Board or
Commnuittee thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to commission not exceeding 1%
of the net profits ofthe Company.

)
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Sh. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was constituted on April 25, 2014 with Sri T.Kannan as Chairman and
Sri. K. Thiagarajan and Sri. RM. Somasundaram as Members.

The terms of reference of this Committee is to comply with the requirements of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 and all other relevant compliances.

The Committee met twice during the year on 19" QOctober 2018, and on 31st January, 2019
which was attended by Sri.T.Kannan, CMD, Sri.K.Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaran,
Directors of the Company, for approval of the CSR spending and excepting Sri.T.Kannan,
other Directors received a sitting fee of Rs.3,000/- for the meeting.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company's website.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations of all Committees.
Separate Meceting of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the company M/s. RM. Somasundaram, A.Manappan and
M.Murugesan meton 31" January 2019 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors
and members of management. They deliberated and reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. Besides they assessed the quality, quantity
and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board
members that is necessary and essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

SHARES:
6. STAREROLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee considered and reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Committee taking into
account the additional role of SRC as amended under Schedule [ Part D(B) of the SEBI
(LODR) Regulations

Constitution and Composition: The Stakeholders Relationship Committec has been
reconstituted in terms of Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations duly amended
consisting of Sri T.N. Ramanathan an Independent Director as Chairman and Sri T. Kannan

and Sri K. Vethachalam as Members of the Committee.
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The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee has through Circular resolutions, approves the
transfers, transmissions and demat requests. Mr.S. Paramasivam, Secretary of the Company,
who is also the Secretary and Compliance Officer for the Committee.

During the year Twenty grievances regarding non-receipt of shares applied for
transfer/transmission, non-receipt of dividend, Balance Sheet and related matters were
received from the shareholders and out of excepting one case all others redressed. There was
no transfer of shares pending for transfer at the close of the year.

Information on {nclaimed Dividend:

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Company is committed in making timely
payment of dividend. Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act 2013,
dividend that remained unpaid or unclaimed for financial year ended 31" March 2012, due to
be transferred on 20.07.2019 to The Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF),
constituted by Central Government under Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 will be
transferred within the time prescribed.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2019:

Nao. of Shares No. of % of No. of Y of
held Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholding
Upto 5000 2998 89.98 2751384 6.84
5001 - 10000 143 429 966672 2.40
10001 - 20000 88 2.64 1248313 3.10
20001 - 30000 42 1.26 1073449 2.67
30001 - 40000 i4 0.42 507486 1.26
40001 - 50000 6 0.18 278988 6.70
50001 - 100000 22 0.66 1654427 4.11
100001 - above 17 0571 31746881 78.92
Total 3330 100.00 | 40227600 100.00
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Sharcholding pattern as on 31" March 2019:

Shareholders No. of Shares held % of total shares held
Promoters 30169700 75.00
Corporate Bodies 172126 (.43
Public 9661071 24.01
NRI’s 224703 0.56

Total 40227600 100.00

The Company has not issued any ESOP to its Employees / Directors.
Dematerialisation of shares:

The shares of the Company have been dematerialized and the unique ISIN number allotted for
the Company as under:

ISIN : INE222F61029
Currently 93.1 5% of'the total shares have been dematerialised.

The Shares held by Promoters have all been dematerialised.

Listing at Stock Exchanges:

SLNo | Name of the Exchange Code Address

1 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 532893 Regd. Office: Floor 25, P}
Towers Dalal Street,
MUMBALI - 400 001

TRADING SYMBOL AT BSE : VIM

Demat ISIN No. : INE222F01029

Share Price movements:
Market price data : Exchange : BSE
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Month HIGH LOW
Rs. Rs.

APRIL 18 3145 27.20
MAY 18 29 85 26.20
JUNE °18 30.00 25.90
JULY 18 29.70 25.20
AUGUST 18 29.55 26.25
SEPTEMBER 18 28.90 25.25
OCTOBER "18 3045 24.80
NOVEMBER "18 31.06 26.80
DECEMBER "18 32.00 26.00
JANUARY "2019 25.00 26.30
FEBRUARY 19 27.30 24.05
MARCH 19 28.00 23.00

The share quotations are stated for the Re 1/- Face value of the company's equity share.

Stock Options :  Nil,

Plant Location : Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, Pin: 626 003

6.1 Compliance Officer : Mr. S. Paramasivam Company Secretary, is the Secretary of this
Committee and the Compliance Officer and his contact details are given below :

Mz, S. Paramasivam,

Company Secretary

VTM Limited

Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, INDIA

Phone : 0452 -2482595-Ext 549
Email : comphanceofficer@vtmill.com
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6.2 Details of Complaints from Shareholders:

No. of complaints remaining unresolved

as on 31.03.2018 0
No. of complaints/Requestsreceived duringtheyear @ 0
No. of complaints/Requests resolved during the year  : 9
No. of complaints unresoived ason 31.03.2019 : 1

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings are given below
Details of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM).

AGMyfg;rtl;iEl’eigancial Date & Time of AGM
31* March, 2018 22" June 2018 at 3.00 pm
31¥ March, 2017 23 June 2017 at 12.00 Noon
31" March, 2016 27% June 2016 at 10.00 am

EGM / Postal Ballot meetings:

One Extraordinary General Meeting was held on 13.03.2019 for the reappointment
of the Independent Directors and for the consent of the members for continuance of the
Directorship of the Directors who have crossed the age of 75 Years.

All the resolutions set out in the AGM Notice & EGM notice were passed by the
Shareholders (e-voting).

Both the Annual General Meeting, and the Extraordinary General Meeting were held at the
Registered Office of the Company.

7.1  Pledge of shares held by Promoters: No pledge has been created by the Promoters on the
equity shares held ason March 31,2019.

7.2 Special resolutions:

The company has neither passed special resolution nor resolution requiring postal ballot
in the Annual General Meeting held on June 22, 2018.
l=
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The resolutions placed before the members of the Company at the EGM were passed as
special resolutions.

At the ensuing 72" Annual General Meeting to be held on 17" June, 2019 no resolution
is proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

7.2.1 Pursuant to section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable requirements, voting at the 72" Annual General Meeting will be made
through electronic voting. The electronic voting period commences on 12" June, 2019
(9:00 am)and ends on 15° June, 2019 (6:00 pm) both days inclusive.

7.2.2 Scrutinizer for electronic voting : Mr. LB. Hartkrishna, of Akshaya Corporate Solutions

8.1

8.2

Private Limited, Practising Company Secretaries (C.P No 5302) has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the electronic voting process in a fair and transparent
manner and to give hisreport to the Chairman.

DISCLOSURES:

Details of transactions with related parties have been reported i the Notes to Accounts,
All the transactions with related parties are at arm's length basis. All transactions
entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2013 during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and
on an arm's length pricing basis.

There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the
year, which were in conflict with the interests of the company and that require approval
of the company in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,

The Transactions with the related parties of routine nature have been reported as per Ind
AS 24 notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs dated 16" February, 2015 relating to the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted “Ind AS” with effect
from 1 April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2018-19 have
been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.
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8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

3.9

3.10

9.1

9.2

Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS18) has been made in
the notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or
strictures imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has in place an Employee Concern (Whistle Blower) which is also
available on the Company's website. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee to lodge their grievances.

Allmandatory requirements have been appropriately complied with.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Directors’ Report.
No presentations were made to institutional investors and analysts during the year.

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate.

There have been no public issues, rights issues or other public offerings during the past
five years. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible
mstruments.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quarterly results are published in the Business Standard and the Tamil version thereofin
Malai Malar, the day after the Board Meeting where the results are approved. These
financial results and quarterly sharcholding pattern are electronically transmitted to the
stock exchanges and are also uploaded on the Company's website www.vtmill.com.

Shareholder communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to the
email addresses of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. Annual
Accounts are sent to Members at least 25 days before the date of Annual General
Meeting.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report is
enclosed. [Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the Listing SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.]




‘ 3
kVTM 1.13-1‘[T§513§

9.3 The Company's website:

www.vtmill.com makes online announcements of Board Meeting results of the
guarterly financial results, announcement of the date of Annual General Meeting and
proposed dividend, and other announcements. Copies of Notices sent to Shareholders
are also available on the website.

94 Address for communication :

All communication regarding share transactions, change of address, bank mandates,
nominations ete. should be addressed to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company at the following address :

Registrar & Transfer Agent:

Karvy Fintech Pvt. Ltd.

(Unit: VIM LIMITED)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, PlotNo 31 & 32,

Financial District, Nanakramguda,

Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad— 500 032.
Ph:+91 04067161518

Contact Person: Mr.D.SURESH BABU- Manager—RIS.

The sharcholders may also address their correspondence to:-

VTM LIMITED
Sulakarai
Virudhunagar-626 003.
Phone: 04562-234801

VIMLIMITED
Chairman's Office:
Thiagarajar Mills Premises
Kappalur

Madurai-625 (08,

Phone: 0452-2482595
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Grievances, if any, may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at email at
complianceofficer@vimill.com

Shareholders are requested to mention their Folio Nos., DP-ID and Client ID in case of demat
shares, phone and mobile nos. and their Email ID so that the Company/Compliance Officer
can contact them and redress their complaints immediately. However, for instructions like
change of bank mandate, change of address, transfers & transmission of shares etc. letters duly
signed by the Shareholders concerned should be sent, otherwise such requests cannot be
processed by the Registrars. Email ID of Shareholders will have to be registered with the
Company to enable the Company or the Registrars to communicate electronically.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Date, Time and Venue of the R June, 2019 at 12.00 NOON at the
Annual General Meeting, Registered Office at Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar.
2. Dates of Book Closure/Record . | Register of Members will be closed from
date for Financial Year 2018-19 6™ June to 15" June, 2019
3. Resuilts for Quarter ending : | 3™ Week of July, 2019.
June 30, 2019 (Provisional)
Results for Quarter ending . 1 3 Week of October, 2019
September 30, 2019
{Provisional)
Results for Quarter ending : | 3% Week of January, 2020,
December 31, 2019 (Provisional)
Financial Calendar — 1% April 2019 © 1 4™ Week of April, 2020.
To 31 March 2020 (Audited)
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Auditers' Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of VTM Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by VTM Limited ('the
Company") for the year ended March 31, 2019 as per Regulations 17-27, clauses (b} to (1) of Regulation
46(2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Regnirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governauce is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thercof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the
Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify
that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations
17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V
ofthe Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as to the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

Restrictions on use

This Certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not
be suitable for any other purpose.

Place: Madurai For CNGSN & Associates LLP

Date: April 22, 2019 Chartered Accountants
Firm Regtstration No.0049158/ 5200036
(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner

Membership Noa, 027501 47 E
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Anpnexure H

M.K.BASHYAM 43{9A), Palmal Cross Sireet
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai - 625001,
FCS600-CP.No.3837 Phone : 9994110512

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" March, 2019.

[Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014]
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2019

To,

The Members,
VTM LIMITED,
Virudhunagar,

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by VIM LIMITED (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.,

Based on my verification of VITM LIMITED's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31.03.2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

[ have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by VTM LIMITED {*the Company™) for

]
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai — 625001,
FCS 600 - CP.No. 3837 Phone : 9994110512

the financial year ended on 31" March,2019 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,
(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 'SCRA") and the rules
made thereunder;
(ii1) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and Extermal Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):~

(a) SEBI(LODR)Regulations, 2015 & 2018.

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with chient;

(e} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; and

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

(vi) Taxation Laws, Labour Laws and Environmental Laws.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(1) SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read
with the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange
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MK BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai ~ 625001.
FCS 600 - CP.No. 3837 Phone : 9594110512

(1) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and all other regulations of
SEBI as applicable to the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Managing
Director, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board have been unanimousty passed.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has convened the Annual General
Meeting along with e-voting facility after giving required notices to the members of the
Company duly complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

This reportisto be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of thisreport.

Signature : Sd/- MLK.Bashyam
Name of Company Secretary
Place : Madurai -625 001. 1n practice / Firm:
Date : 12.04.2019 FCS No.600 C P No.:3837
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‘Annexure A'
{To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. VTM Limited for the financial year ended

31/03/2019)

To

The Members,

VTM Limited,

Sulakarati,

Virudhunagar.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31/03/2019 of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

I.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
onmy audit,

I have followed the andit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, [ followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basts.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Madurai -625 001. Signature : Sd/- M.K.Bashyam

Date

» 12.04.2019 Name of Company Secretary
in practice / Firm:
FCS No.600 C P No..3837
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai ~ 625001.
FCS 600 - CP-No. 3837 Phone : 8994110512

"Anaexure B

(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. VIM Limited for the financial year ended 31/03/2019)

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
[Pursuant to Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulations]

1 have examined:;

(2)

(b)
(c)
(&)

all the documents and records made available to me and explanation provided by
(VTM Limited) (“the listed entity™),

the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges,
website of the listed entity, ‘

any other document/filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to
make this certification,

for the year ended (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:

(a)

(b)

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the
Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and
the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA™), rules made thereunder

and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI");

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/guidelines issued thereunder,

have been examined, include:-

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 201

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014:

Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; 52
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Strect
Company Secretary i Practice Madurat — 625001,
FCS 600 - CP-No. 3837 Phone : 99941105612
(g} Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013;
(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;
and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period:
(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and
circulars/guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:-
Sr. Compliance Requirement Deviations | Observations/ Remarks
No. {Regulations/circulars/ guide of the Practicing
lines including specific clause) Company Secretary
Not applicable Nil NA
(b) The listed entity has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above
Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder insofar as it appears from my
examination of those records.
{¢) The following are the details of actions taken against the listed entity/ its

Promoters/Directors/material subsidiarics either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges
(including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various
circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/Regulations and circulars/guidelines issued

thereunder:
Sr. Action Details of Details of action | Observations/ Remarks
No. taken by violation taken e.g. fines, | of the Practicing
warning letter, Company Secretary
debarment, etc, _
Not Nil Nil -
applicable
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{(d) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply
with the observations made in previous reports:
Sr. Observations | Observations | Actions taken by | Comments of the
No. of the made inthe | the list ed entity, | Practicing Company
Practicing secretartal if any Secretary on the
Company compliance actions taken by the
Secretary in | report for the listed entity
the previous | year
reports ended....
(The years
are to be
mentioned)
Not Nil NA
applicable
Note:

o

Provide the list of all the observations in the report for the previous year along with
the actionstaken by the listed entity on these observations.

Add the list of all observations in the reports pertaining to the periods prior to the

previous year in case the entity has not taken sufficient steps to address the

concerns raised/observations.

E.g. Inthe report for the year ended 31" Mar, 2021, the PCS shall provide a list of

» all the observations in the report for the year ended 31 March, 2020 along with the actions

taken by the listed entity on those observations.

+ the observations in the reports pertaining to the year ended 31° March, 2020 and earlier, in

case the entity has not taken sufficient steps to address the concerns raised/observations in

those reports).

Place : Madurai -625 001.

Pate :

12.04.2019

Signature : Sd/- ML.K.Bashyam
Name of Company Secretary

in practice / Firm:
FCS No.600 C P No.:3837
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Annexure ‘(7
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. VIM Limited for the financial year ended
31/03/2019)

(Pursuant to Clause 2 (10) h of Part C of the SEBI (LODR) {(Amendment)
Regulations 2018)

This is to certify that none of the Directors on the Board of VIM Limited, Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar (CIN No. L17111TN1946PLC003270) has been debarred  or disqualified
from being appointed or confinuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities
Exchange Board Of India /Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority.

Place : Madurai -625 001. Signature : Sd/- M.K.Bashyam
Date : 12.04.2019 Name of Company Secretary
in practice / Firm:
FCS No.600 C P No.:3837
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Annexure — [

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31" March, 2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1)
of the Companies Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

LREGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i} CIN L17111TN1946PLC003270

i} Registration Date 27-07-1946

iii) Name of the Company VTM LIMITED

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company

V) Address of the Registered office and contact SULAKARAL, VIRUDHUNAGAR
details

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No Yes

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of Karvy Fintech Pvt.Ltd.,
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Karvy Selenium, Tower B,

Plot No 31 & 32,

Financial District,
Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally Mandal,
Hyderabad ~ 500 032.
Phone : 91 040 67161518
Fax . 9140 23420814

. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total tumover of the company shall

be stated:-

SI.No. Name and NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Description of main product / service of the Company
products / services

Ll Fabrics 17115 100.00%
P, PARTICULARS OF BOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.No | Name and Address | CIN/ GIN Hold ing / % of Applicable
of the Company ¢ Subsidiary / shares Section
Associate held
NIL
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IV, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

1
i

b Caegory-wise Share Holding

H
i
3
3
3

Gategory of
Shareholders

No. of Shares hald ot the beginnitg of tha year

{as an 31" March 2018)

Wo. of Sharas heid at the snd of the year
(as on 3ist March 2013)

% change in
sharehokding
during the
year

Domat

Physical

Tatal

Physical

Totai

% of total
shares

A. Premoters

{1) Indian

- Inclividuals *f
HUF

535600

585600

148

ERERGC |

SH6600

148

- Central Govif
Stale Govt.,

- Bodies Corp.

3518300

5518300

3777

5518300

5518300

1372

- Banks/Flis

- Any other
{specify)
Partnership
Firms

23038000

23038000

5727

23038000

2038000

57.27

Sub-total {A}{1)

25141500

29141909

72.45

2141905

29141969

72.45

{2} Foreign

- individuals
{Non Resident)

BTA2040

874200

874200

874200

2197

- Individieais /
Farpign
individuals}

153600

153600

153800

THIE00 i

0.38

- Bodies
Corporate

- tnstitutions

- Any ather
{Specify)

Subfotal (A)
2

1027800

1027800

2.55

10278068

1027600

2.55

Tostat
Shareholding of
Promoter {A) =
{AH11+{AN2)

30169700 |

JNEIT00

75.00

3016a700

MHE9T08

75.00

8. Pubtle
Sharehoiding

1. institutions

a) Motual Fonds

b) Banks { F

Tibsurares Cos

gy Flis

Sub-toial
{81}

2. Non-
Institutions

3 Indian

216652

47300

263952

3.86

124826

1 Ovarseas

by Individuals

i} individiuat
sharahoidars
hodding nominal
share capital
upto Hs. 1 lakh

5544559

2514080

20E2GTE

20,04

5588661

18.92

i) imdviduat
shareholders
holding nominal
share capilal in
excess of Rat
Jgkh

116007

283000

1474067

354

1269181

-0.12
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VTM LIMITED

] Others ’ 238722 12600 241322 054 FIE122 12606 228722 o587 ~0.03
{specify) NRis i
Firms - EEO0D ¢ G600 0.16 - GEQOG BEOOD .18

Sub-fotat ' Fi39840 0 2927960 13057900 25160 733760 | 2754110 10357800 2550
{B)H2):- .. o A .
Total Public 7129540 29779680 19057300 25060 7303750 | 2754110 10657900 25.00
Sharehoiding
(BB}

B8)(2) j
C. Shares hakd - - . R I _ . i -
by Custodian for
GEORs 3 ADRSs

Grand Total 37286640 | 2927960 | 45337800 100000 | 37473450 | 2977060 | A02ATEGG 160.00
(A+B+C)

(i) Shareholding of Promoters

sl Shareholders Name Sharetiding at the beginning Sharehoiding at the endef the year
No. {Mrs} of the year
Mo, % of tolal | %ot No. %oftotal | % of Shates | % changein
of Shares Shares of | Shares | of Shares of | Piedged { shardholding
the Pladged | Shares the encumbored to | during the
COMpPITY f company tetal year
encumb shargs
erad to
totat
shares
1 if. Kannan 585600 1.46| - 535600 1.46 - -
2 [Radha Kannan T 874200 237 - 874200 217 - -
3 [K Thiagarajan i 15360C 0.38 - 153600 038 - -
4 Thiagsrajar Mills Pvt. Ltd 2678000 5.66 - 2678000 6.66 - -
5 iTKannan, Partner, 7520060! 18.69 - | 7520000 1869 -
Guruvayoorappan
Envestiments
6 [T.Kannan, Partner, Avittam 7500000 1864 - 7500000 18.64 - -
Investments
7 [LKannan, Partner, £130000 15,390 - 6190000 15.39 - -
Karumuttu Investmernts
8 [L.Kannan, Partner, 18280600 454 T 1828000 P R —
iThirumagal Investmeants ;
9 Sree Thiagaraja Finance Pyt. 1504000 3.74 - 1504000 3.74 - - :
itd
10 [Sree Devi Karumari Finance | 1336300 33 Y “1336300 3.32 - -
Pvt. Lid :
30169700  75.000 0 |30169700  75.00 o
i | :
i 1 H

(1if) Changein Promoters' Sharcholding (please specify, if there is no change) -
There 1s no change in promoters’ Sharcholding

(iv) Sharchoiding Pattern oftop ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

58




E ; o

-

1

LINITED)

S| No,

Share
holding
at

beginning

Cumulative
share
holding
during the
Year

No. of
shares

% of Total
Sh capital
of
company

No. of
shares

% of Total
Sh capital
of
company

1. Anil Kumar Goel

At the beginning of year

400443

1.00

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date

At the end of the year

400443

1.00

2. L.RM.K. Valliappan

At the beginning of year

183000

0.45

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date

Buy/(Sell)

At the end of the year

183000

0.45

3, Vinay Kumar Gupta

165000

0.41

At the beginning of year

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

AL the end of the year

165000

0.41

4.Lalitha Narayanan

At the beginning of year

159500

0.40

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

159500

0.40

5.K.S.Gopalaswamy & Ranjani
Gopalswamy

At the beginning of year

150000

0.37

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

150000

0.37

6. §.Kasi Viswanathan

At the beginning of year

150000

0.37

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

150000

0.37
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7. LR.M.K.Subramanian

At the beginning of the year 120000 0.30

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year 120000 0.30
8. S.N. Rajan

At the beginning of year 110467 0.28

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date Buy/(Seil)

02.11.2018 Buy 5000 0.01 115467 0.29
07.12.2018 Buy 20000 0.05 135467 0.34
15.02.2019 Buy 4000 0.01 139467 0.35
At the end of the year 139467 0.35
9.Vinod Chandra Mansukhlal Parekh

At the beginning of the year 92335 0.23

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year 92335 0.23
10. Amit Aravind Gunderia

At the beginning of year 90759 0.23

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date Buy/(Selh)

24.8.2018 (Sell) -500 0.00 90259 0.22
16.11.2018 Buy 2000 (.00 92259 0.23
21.12,2018 Buy 18459 0.05 110718 0.28
28.12.2018 Buy 524 0.00 111242 0.28
31,12.2018 Buy 516 0.00 111758 0.28
04.01.2019 {Sell} -2887 -0.01 108871 0.27
20.03.2019 {Sell) -2453 -0.01 106418 0.26
At the end of the year 106418 0.26
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{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Openin Cumuiative Closing Balance
g
Nameofthe | Dojance m: % of total % of total
pirecor sp | (0of | Doteel | PUe | e | aresof | No.of | sharesof | No.of | shares of
{M/s.} total | the | shares the shares the
thare Company Company Company
capital)
1. KANNAN 585600 . - - - . - 585600 146
K. THIAGARAJAN ¢ 153600 - - - - - - 153600 | 0.38
{UMA KANNAN - - - - - - - -
RM. SOMASUNDARAM | 60000 - . - . - - 60000 2.15
LNY. SUBRAMANIAN - - - - - - . P -
A, MARIAPPAN - - - - - - - - -
M. MURUGESAN - - - -
K. VETHACHALAM - - - - - -
5. PARAMASIVAM-CS - - - - - - - -
M| RAMANATHAN-CFO* - - - - - - - - -

M RBAMANATHAN-CFO was emploved for part of the year — From (1.02.2019,
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial
year

i} Principal
Amount

it} Interest due
but not paid

it} Interest
accrued but not
due

111763620

111763620

Totad (i+ii+iii)

111763620

111763620

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year
* Addition

* Reduction

34780590

34780590

Net Change

(34780590)

{34780590) |

Indebtedness

at the

end of the
financial year

) Principal
Amount

i) Interest due
but not paid
i} Interest
accrued but not
due

76983030

76983030

Total (i+ii-+iii)

76983030

76983030
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VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Hemuneration to Managing Director:

SI.No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Managing Director

Total
Amount

T.Kannan

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

{b} Value of perquisites
ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(¢} Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income tax Act, 1961

NA

Stock Option

NA

Sweat Equity

NA

Commission

- a5 % of profit
- others, specify

56,00,000

56,00,000

Others, please specify

Total (A)

96,060,000

56,010,000

Ceiling as per the Act

63,835,000

63,85,000
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Particulars of
Remuneration

Mame of Directors

RM.Somasundaram

L.N.V.Subramanian

A.Mariappan

M.Murugesan

Total
Amount

1. Independent
Directors

« Fee for attending
Board meeting

. Committee
Mestings

+ Commisslon

- Others, please
spacify

12000

27600

6000

6000

12600

21000

S600

3000

39006

57008

Total (1)

39000

12000

33000

12000

36000

T.XKannan

K.Thiagarajan

Uma Kannan

K.Vethachalam

2. Other Non-
Executive
Directors

* Fee for attending

Board meeting

' Committee

Meetings

- Commiission

* Others, please

specify

12000

12000

12069

6000

36000

12006

Total (2)

24000

12000

6000

42000

Total (B}=(1+2)

36006

45000

13000

138000

Total Managerial
Remuneration

527,38,000

Overall Ceiting as
per the Act

63,85,000
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MIVMANAGER/WTD

Si.No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Kev Managerial Personnel

CEQ

CFO*

CFO**

Company
Secretary

Totai

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of
perqguisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

{€) Profits in lieu
of salary under
section 17(3)
Income-tax Act,
1961

1227324
Til
31.1.2019

132214
from
01.02.2019

424440

1783578

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, please
specify

Total

1227000

132000

424000

1783000

* Mr.R Krishnan, previous CFO was in employment till 31.01.2019.
** Mr.M Ramanathan, present CFO isin employment since 01.02.2019

| o




Vi, PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Pescription Penalty / {RD / NCLT / | made,
Companies Punishment/ COURT] if any
Act Compounding {give

fees imposed Details)

A. Company

Penalty Nil

Punishment Nil

Compounding | Nil

B. Directors

Penalty Nil

Punishment Nif

Compounding | Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nit
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil

n

*

EVTM LEIMITED
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Particulars furnished pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
P, STEPS TAKEN FOR CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
a) Installation of Inverter for CFM Awr Compressor:
In order to save power, the company instalied inverters in Kaeser Compressorata
total cost of Rs.3.83 lakhs which considerably reduced per day unit consumption
in power.
2. STEPS TAKEN FOR ALTERNATE SOURCES OF ENERGY & CONSERVATION
OF BQUIPMENTS.
a) The company has already installed 4 Nos. Wind Turbine Generator at a Capital

Outlay of Rs.2325 Lakhs for Green Energy and these Wind Turbine Generator
saves substantial power cost.

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

31.3.2019 31,3.2018
1. Electricity
a) Purchased:
Units ' I K. 934,409
Total Amount L Rs.2,06,04,627
Rate Per Unit | Rs,22.03
{Inchuding Maximum T
demand charges)
b} Own Generation:
Through Diesel Generator
Units 1,64,512
Units per litve of oil 3.02
Cost Per Unit Rs.17.57
¢} Through Windmill:
i Produced Units 73,78.745
i Availed Units 73,78,745

dy  Through Independent
Power Producers and
through Power exchange:

Units

Rate per Unit

97,32,366 |

Rs.5.05 |
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B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF

PRODUCTION OF CLOTH:

Electricity per Metre

of production of cloth Rs4.43 1 | Rs.3.72 |
ote: I.  Nostandard rate of consumption is available.

2. As the company is producing numerous varieties or sorts of cloth, separate
details for each variety or sortare not given.

1L TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONAND RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT :

As stated in last year, the company installed Kar] Mayer Warping Machines and Sizing
Machine along with one No. Benninger Sizing Machine at a total cost of about Rs.782.91
lakhs which bhas resulted in better performance of looms with considerable savings in
manpower, energy, steam and sizing chemicals.

Further, a Savio Automatic Cone Winder with 40 drums capacity has also been installed
at a cost of Rs.114.65 lacs to rewind the baby cones by which 50 to 60% of rewounded cones
were used as captive consumption instead of disposing it off at throw away price.

The company is installing a Humidification Plant at a cost of Rs.90 lakhs in Warping
and Auto cone winding machine shed to improve the working performance of these machines
and to collect the fluff generated in the process and to maintain the work environment clean.

HLFOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSANDOUTGO:

The company has earned during the year under report, foreign exchange equivalent to
Rs.5362.47 Lakhs (FOB value of exports) through direct exports.

The foreign exchange outgo during the period is Rs.246.98 Lakhs.

The company is striving to expand the export market segment by broadening its geographical

sweep.
Kappalur, Madural For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
22 April, 2019. T. Kannan

CHAIRMAN
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ANNEXURE VI

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL IN TERMS OF RULE 5 OF COMPANIES
{APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

SNo | Particulars Details
1. i The ratio of the remuneration of sach Director to Rs. in lakhs |
| the median remuneration of the employees of the !
company for the financial year; Name of the | Designation | Remuneration | Ratioto
Director Median |
Remuneration |
 Sri T. Kannan Chairman & 56.00 53.84
? Managing f
Difector N
2, The percentage intrease in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Finandial Officer, Chief Executive Nameof the  :Designation Remuneration | Percentage
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in Director increase in
the financial year; Remyneration
2017-18 : 2018-18
SiT.Kannan | Chairman® i 55.00 : 56.00 182%
Managing
............................. el L
Mr. RKrishna Chief 12.27 i
{upte Financial
31.01.2019) Officer
Mr M. Chief - 132
Ramanathan Financial
{from Gficer
{1.02.2019)
S S, Company | 413 | 4.4 2 66%
Paramasivam Secretary
3 ‘The parcentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the financial year; Year 201718 5 01819 Increase
Median 104 1 L 0%
¢ | Remumneration i
4, | The number of perma nent employees on the rofls -
of Company; i 540
5. | Average percentile increase already made inthe | -
salaries of employees other then the Managerial | | Detalls Ai7-18 2018-19 Increase
Personnel in the last financial year ang its | | Employee cost 1157.20 1131.93 -2.18%

Particutars of employees as per Rule 3(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

NIL
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ANNEXURE VI

Particulars of Corporate Social Responsibility activities carried out by the Company
in terms of Section 135 of the Act, 2013

1.  Abrief outline of the Company's CSR policy:

This policy encompasses the Company's philosophy for giving back to society as a
corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially
useful programs for the transformation and sustainable development of the rural

communities at large.

2. Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:

Focus areas relating to eradication of hunger and poverty, economic development,
quality education, health care, conservation of environment and the creafion,
maintenance of infrastructure.,

3. Web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs - http://www.vtmill.com/CSR
Policy.pdf

4.  Composition of the CSR Committee.

# Name of the Director Destgnation Status
I. | SnT. Kannan Chairman and Managing Chairman
Director
2. | Sn1 K. Thiagarajan Non-Executive Director Member
3. | Sr1t RM. Somasundaram | Independent Director Member

5. Average net profit of the Company for last three
financial years Rs.1472.72 lakhs

6.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure
(2% of the amount as in item 5 above) Rs. 29.45 lakhs

7. Details of CSR spent during the financial year
{(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year Rs.29.45 lakhs
{b) Amount unspent, if any Rs.28.27 lakhs
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C. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:
S.No, | Name of the Impiementing Agency:
1. Project No.1 Direct - Public eye camp at Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar.
1 CSR Project or activity identified - () FEradicating  hunger, poverty,
Reference to Item No. to Schedule VII | promoting preventive heaith  care and
sanitation and making available safe
drinking water;
(i} Promotion of Education, including
special education and employment
enhancing vocational  skills especially
among children, women and tivelihood
enhancement projects;
(ii)  Promoting gender equality,
empowering women and measures for
reducing inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward groups,
{iv} ensuring environment sustainability,
ecological balance, animal welfare,
agroforestry, conservation of natural
resources and maintain quality of soil, air
and water;
{v) rural deveiopment projects.
2 | Sector in which the Project is covered | Project 1 — Promoting preventive Health
Care by conducting Eye Camp near Milis
Premises.
3 Areas in which Projects / Programmes
undertaken:
4 Local Area / Others: Project I - Local Area
State & district Project T - Tamil Nadu; Vi?t]dhunagar bt.
Amount cutlay (budget)} project or Project T - Rs, 1.18 lakh
program-wise:
5 Amount spent on the projects or Project I - Rs. 1.18 lakh
programmes:
6 Sub-heads:
Direct expenses On projects / Project T - Rs. 1.18iakh
programs:
Cverheads:
7 | Cumulative expenditure upto the Project I - Rs. 1.18 lakh
repoiting period:
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In case the company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not
spending the amount inits Board report.

The Company has decided to contribute to M/s. Thiagarajar College of Engineering,
an educational institution, which has proposed to undertake infrastructure
enhancement projects with a projected cost 0f Rs.700 lakhs for which the funds have to
be accumulated. In order to accumulate the funds for the above project, the Company
has not spent a sum of Rs.28.27 lakhs during the year.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company.

To discharge the duties cast under provisions of the Act, members of the CSKR
Committee visit the place where the project is undertaken. Chairman also has regular
reviews of the progress made and the work done.

For and on behalf of the Board

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director and
Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure VIiH

Chairman & Managing Director's Certiticate

Annual Certificate under Regulation 34{3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that all the
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the
Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure IX

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Oblications & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

We, T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director and M. Ramanathan, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company certify that -

A.

B.

We have reviewed Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended 31.3.2019, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(1)  these staiements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(1) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by
the company during the vear which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the
Company’'s code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for
financial reporiing and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control
systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to
the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of
internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or
propose to take to rectify those deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

{t)  there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting
during the year.

(11)  the company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in terms of
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for the current
financial year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

(11t} there are no instances of fraud of which we became aware and the
tnvolvement therein if any of the management or an employee having a
significant rote in the Company's internal controt system over financial
reporting.

Date : 22.04.2019 T, Kanpan

Piace : Madurai

Chairman & Managing Director

M. Ramanathan 25
Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure X : Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four Directors of which two are
Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director and Chairperson (Executive) as the
Members of the Committee and as such complies with the obligations of the Comipanies Act,
2013 and the corporate govemance requirements of the Listing Agreement with stock
exchanges. The Chairperson of this Committee is an Independent Director. The Chairperson of
the Board of Directors is a member of this Committee but will not Chair this Committee.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference which were approved by the Board
on April 29, 2014. These terms of reference have been prepared in a manner to generally
maintain overall continuity with the nomination and remuneration policies of the company
while complying with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreements with stock
exchanges.

Role and Responsibilities

The Committee's foremost priorities are to ensure that the Company has the best posstble
leadership and maintains a clear plan for both Executive and  Non-Executive Director
succession. The Committee also reviews Senior Management succession. Its prime focus is
therefore on the strength of the Board and the Senior Management team and ensuring that
appointments are made on merit, against objective criteria, selecting the best candidate for the
post. The Committee advises the Board on the appointments, retirements and resignations
from the Board and its Committees. It also advises the Board on similar changes to the Senior
Management of the Company.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice, at the cost of the Company, in relation to its deliberations and to securce the
attendance at its meetings of any emptoyee or other parties it considers necessary.

Criteria for appointments and independence of Divectors

When considering appointments to the Board and its Committees, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will draw up a specification for the role taking into consideration
the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of its existing members, the diversity of the
Board and the Company's ongoing requirements. The Company believes that diversity
underpins the successful operation of an effective Board and embraces diversity as a means of
enhancing the business.

The recruitment process then focuses on appointing candidates who meet the criteria, who
have the relevant professional knowledge, professional qualifications and experience.
Successful candidates are likely to have demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal
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communication skills, act with integrity and have international business exposure.

Care 1s taken to ensure that all proposed appointees have sufficient time available to devote to
the role, are compliant with the rules, policies and values of our Company and do not have any
conflicts of interest.

On appointments or promotions, the Commiittee will typically use the Remuneration Policy of
the Company to determine ongoing remuneration. However, the Committee retains the
discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside the Standard Policy to meet
specific circumstances.

Remuneration Policy

The overarching philosophy for remuneration within the company is to attract, retain and
motivate individuals of the caliber necessary to successfully implement the Company's
business strategy. In particular, this means ensuring that incentive plans are appropriate to
encourage enhanced performance and to avoid rewarding underperformance. In viewing and
setting Company's remuneration policy, the Committee seeks to balance the interests of its
employees and those of its stakeholders, to support Company strategy and foster a high
performance culture, where a meaningful portion of remuneration is performance inked.

Remwuneration Policy for Managing Director:

An appropriate level of remuneration may be set to ensure that the Company can appoint
Managing Director of the necessary skill and experience by offering him market competitive
remuneration reflecting his individual experience, role and contribution. The appointment
may be for a tenure of such vears from the date ofhis appointment not exceeding the period in
terms of Section 196 and as prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The
individual's performance will be reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and recommended to the Board enabling it to decide the remuneration payable to
the Managing Director.

The total remuneration package may be designed to provide an annual remuneration payable
by way of commission and other perguisites as decided by the Board of Directors however, not
exceeding 5% of the net profits of the company computed in accordance with the provisions
of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company for each financial year within the maximum permissible limit, Further, in the event
of his being Managing Director in any other company, such remuneration shall not exceed the
higher maximum limit admissible from any one of these companies, in terms of Schedule Vto
the Companies Act, 2013,
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The Managing Director is not entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or the
Committees where he will be the Chairman/Member. He is entitled to have Chairman's Office
at his convenience at Company's expenses.

Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or its
Committees at rates which are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 201 3.
They are also entitled to commission on net profits, as determined by the Board from time to
time, not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company for that year. The level of
remuneration is set to atiract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the necessary skill and
experience by offering them market competitive remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in Board discussions which relate to their own
remuneration. They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the
Board, Committee and other ad hoc meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at
any time or participate in any retirement plans.

Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and must adhere to the Code for Independent Directors laid down under
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and retain their independence during the entire tenure
of appointment as an Independent Director. The terms of service of Non-Executive
Independent Directors are contained in letters of appointment issued to them after their
appointment at a general meeting of the Company. The current policy for Non-Executive
Independent Directors of the Company is to serve for a maximum period of two terms of five
years each, with review at the end of the first five year term, subject always to mutual
agreement and annual performance evaluation.

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable
Service Tax,

Bemuneration (o Senior Muanagement Personnel

Senior Management Personnel include one level below the Managing Director. Accordingly,
the Personnel such as Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Vice President / General
Manager / Deputy General Manager but not including Administrative Staff. An appropriate
Jevel of remuneration is set to ensure that the Company is able to recruit and retain Senior
Management with the necessary skills, professional qualifications, experience, international

[
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exposure and compliance with the rules and policies of the Company. Market competitive
remuneration is offered to individuals reflecting their experience, role and contribution within
the Company. The individual's performance is reviewed from time to time with changes in
remuneration normally. In considering any increase in base salary, the Committee will mainly
consider the role, changes in job scope, responsibility and complexity and the need to maintain
market competitiveness. Total remuneration package is designed to provide an appropriate
balance between fixed and variable components with a focus on long term variable pay so that
strong performance is incentivised but without encouraging excessive risk taking,

Remuneration arrangements of Senior Management Personnel consist of the same elements as
those of other employees i.¢. Basic Salary, HRA and other allowances, retirement benefits (i.e.
Provident Fund and Gratuity as per the Company's Schemes applicable to all employees) and
perquisites as per Rules of the Company applicable to all employees according to thetr
seniority including corporate club membership, insurance, car and fuel perquisites.

As applicable to all employees, Senior Management Personnel are entitled to avail themselves
of 30 days leave in a year and unavailed leave can be accumulated as per the rules of the

Company up to a maximum of 30 days.
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INDEPENDENTAUDITORS' REPORT
Tothe Members of VIM Limited

Report on the andit of the financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited thefinancial statements of VIM Limited (“the Company™), which comprise
the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the statement of profit and loss(including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations givento us,
the aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
(“Act™ in the manner 5o required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our respensibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICATI's code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Details of the Key Audit Matter

Auditors' Response to the Key Audit Matter

MNew Revenune Standard

The Company adopted Ind AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” with effect from April 1,
2018. The application of the new
revenue accounting standard
involves certain key judgements
relating to identification of distinct
performance obligations,

(b) Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts, and
determination of transaction price of tested the operating effectiveness of the internal control,
the identified performance relating to identification of the distinct performance

. . .\ obligations and determination of transaction price.
obligations and point of recognition
ofrevenue. (¢} Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and

Ind AS 115 also requires extensive
disclosures.

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify the impact of
adoption of the new revenue accounting standard (ind AS 115).

Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as
tollows:

(a)

Evaluated the design of internal conmtrols relating to
implementation of the new revenue accounting standard.

performed the following procedures:

Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in these coniracts.

Compared these performance obligations with that identified
and recorded by the Company.

Considered the terms of the contracts fo determine the
transaction price including any variable consideration to
verify the transaction price used to compute revenue and to
testthe basis of estimation of the variable consideratton.

Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of
revenue recognition as per Ind AS 115.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors'report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

H, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Actwithrespect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performanceincluding other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and appiication of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contols, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so
The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can aris¢ from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
risrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controis

. Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
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ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
tinancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
contmue as a going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication,
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013, we give inAnnexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of

the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(c)

&)

{g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) ot the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “*Annexure B”.Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of sectton 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
1s in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 1] of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
giventous:

a.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 40 to the financial
statements;

b.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
confracts including derivative contracts; and

¢.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.00491558/ 8200036

Place : Madurai ,(Pcrl;m NSAMY GANESAN)
Date:April 22,2019 artper
' i Membership No. 027501
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Independent Auditors' Report

on quarter and year to date financial results for the quarter and year ended March
31, 2019 of M/s VTM Limited Pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors
VTM Limited
Kappalur, Madurai

1.

P

We have audited the quarterly financial results of VTM Limited (the "Company") for the
quarter andyear ended March 31, 2019which are included in the accompanying
'Statement of Audited Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2019’
together with the notes thereon (the "Statement” or “Interim Financial Information”).
The Statement has been prepared by the Company's Management pursuant to Regulation
33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(the "Listing Regulations, 2015”) and SEBI Circular dated July 3, 2016, which has been
initialled by us for identification purposes. The Statement is the responsibility of the
Company's Management and has been approved by its Board of Directors. This
Statement has been prepared by the management in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the Management is also
responsible toensure that the accounting policies used in preparation ofthis Statement are
consistent with those used in the preparation of the anmual financial statements prepared
in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
recognisedaccounting practices and policies.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial results based on our audit of
the aforesaid Statement/ interim financial information

We conducted our audit of the Statement/ interim financial information in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing spectfied under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement/ interim financial

B

information is free from matenial misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and the disclosures in the Statement/ interim financial information. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Statement/ interim financial information, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
contro} relevant to the Company's preparation of the Statement/ interim financial
information that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
ofthe accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Statement/ interim
financial information.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us s sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Statement/ interim financial information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Statement of audited financial results for the quarter and year ended
March 31,2019

{a) are presented in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with
SEBI circular dated July 3,201 6; and

(b) give a true and fair view, in conformity with the aforesaid Indian Accounting
Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the net
profit and other financial information for the quarter and year ended March 31,
2019

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0049158/ 5200036

{(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Partner

Membership No. 027501
Place: Madura:

Date; April 22, 2019
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Ay at As at
Notes March 31, 2009 March 31, 2018
ABSETS
Non-current sasets
Froperty. plant and eguipment 4 B.546.71
Capital work in progress & 67867
Financial assats
Invastments =] 1.8537.71
Loans 7 10,61
Qther financial assets .} TB.50
Other non-current assets ) 61.24
Total non-current aasets LEN 11.312.84
Current asgets
Inventories 10 doa0g A 2.328.10
Financial assats
Investments 11 & BSg BO3.26
Trade recalvables 12 P 2,560.67
Cazsh and cash eguivatents 13 355.30
Bank balances other than above 14 A572.73
Loans and advances 15 597.26
Othar financial aesets 16 -
Oihar current assets 17 TO.67
Total currant assuts 1G. 793 71 10,087.92
Totat Axsets T messan 21,400.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eguity
Equity share capitai 18 20228
Other equity 16 18,194 45
Total aquity 18,596.77
Liakilithes
MNon-current labiliies
Financial tiabilitias
Borrowings 20 77591
Other financial iabliities 21 a5 850G
Defarreg Tax Liabifithas (nat) 22 98793
Tatal non~current llabilities T aaway 1,859.34
Curvent Habtiities
Finangial fiabilitias
Trade payabies
(a} total cuistanding dues of micre enterprizes and smai
entarpriges B
{b)} total outstanding dues of craditors other than micro U,
arterprises and smal enterprises 23 21200 333.67
Othar financizl liabilites 24 .93
Othar current liabitides 25 493 83
Short Term Provigions 26 11522
Total currem: liablitles - 944,56
Totai Habillties - 2,804.00
Totet Equity and Liabiliting 212550 21,400.77

T. Kannan
Clizirman & Managing Director

M Ramanathan
Chief Financial Officer

Place ; Kappalur, Madurai
Date . Apetl 22, 2019

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of the financial statements
For and on behalf of the Board of Dvirectors of VTM Limited

As per our reporl of even date attached
For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration No. (0491587 5200036}

BM. Somasundaram
Drirector

8. Paramasivam
Company Secretary Chinnsamy Ganesan
Partner
Membership No.027501
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Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As af As at
Notes Blarch 31, 2014 March 31, 2018
Cantinuing Operations
A Income
Revenue from operations 27 5E72 8L 16,462 .82
Cther income 28 682 7% 51952
Total income 16.652.63 16,982.34
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 MEzavrs $1,786.63
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade
and finished goods 30 1393731 {247 58}
Employee Benefits Expense M 1A 1,157.20
Finance costs 32 i 77.90
Dapreciation and amortisation expense a3 i1 682,93
Other expenses 34 Z48e.A0 2,319
Total expenses 14,262.11 15,776.99
Profit bafore sxceptional items and tax 1.400.52 ,205.35
Excaptionat items -
Profitl (Loss) before tax from continulng operations 1400 5 1,205.35
Income tax expense 35
Current tax 432.00
Defarrad tax charge/ (credit} {5.35)
Profif {l-o55) for the year 1,321.53 77870
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations & 53 {10.99)
Fair value gain on equily instruments {7.34)
income tax adjusiment relating to thase items 248
Other comprehensive incoms for the year, net of tax 240,86 {15.84)
Total comprehensive income! (Loss) for the year 1,282.49 762.856
Earnings per share K13
Basic earnings per share 754 1.94
Diluted earnings per share 254 194

The accompanying notes form an integral par of the financial statementy
For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of VITM Timited

As per our report of even dame attached
For CNGSN & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration No 0049158/ S20HKI36)

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director

RM, Ssmasundaram
Director

M Ramanathan
Chief Financial Officer

S. Paramastvam

Company Secretary Chinnsamy Ganesan

Partner
Mermbership No.027501
Mace : Kappalur, Madurai o)
Date @ April 22,2019
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Far the year caded For the year ended
March 38, 2018 March 31, 2018
Cash Flow From Opsrating Activitias
Profit before income tax 1.400.52 1.205.35
Adjustments for
Depreciztion and amortigation gxpanse BES 14 68293
(Frofity Loss on sale of fixed asset (R KRY [48.44)
(Profit) Loss on sale of investmant (34 44} (344 98}
Finance costs 3459 7790
Fair valua changes of investments considered to profit and loss {52 2% (1.58}
intarest lncome {aBEAE) (42.87)
Cividend income (44 200 (3791}
Mark te market gain on forward contracts {2 -
1.490.41
Changs in operating assets and liabilitias
(Increase)f decrease in loans and advances G2.73)
(increase)/ decrease in other financial assets 239t
{Incroase) detrsase in other assets {63.30}
{increase)! decreass in inventories (195.78)
{Increase) decreasa in rade receivables {815.99)
Increasef (dacrease) ia provislana and other labilities 119.70)
Increase/ {decrease; in trade payablies {108.88)
Cash generated from operations 54794
Less : income taxes paid (net of refunds} {40589}
Net cash from operating activities (A) 141.05%
Cash Flows From investing Activities
Purchase of PPE {inchuding changes in CWIP) {812.31)
Sale proceeds of PPE {including changes in CWIP) 87.33
{Purchase)/ disposal provasds of Investments (nor-current) 5.87
{Purchase)/ disposal proceeds of investments [current) 4,544 86
{investments in}/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banka (3.497.70)
Dividend income 37.9%
Interest income 32,56
Net cash used in investing activities (B} :____:_________jz_?__?_}'ﬁ: 488.82
Cash Flows From Flnancing Actlvitios
Proceeds fromf {repayment of) long tern borrowings 77 E7
Finance costs V787
Gividend paid (363.14)
Net cagh from/ {used in} financing activitiss (C) (363.14)
Net decraase in cash and cash equivalants {A+B+C} {8041} 276.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financiat year Jeics e ari
Cash and cash squivaltents at end of the year ZTA.BD 355.30

Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7 "Cash Flow Staternents”.

2. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balanees with banks

- ip current accounts ¥3 24 353.55
- In fixed deposit {with ariginal maturity of less than 3 months) et gl -
Casgh on hand 2585 1.78
T 274 30 355.30
The scconmpenying notes form an inteyral pant of te financial sinternents
For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of VTM. Limited
T. Kanuan RM. Bomasundargns Ag per our report of even date attached
Chainnan & Mansging Direclor Director For CNGSN & Associstes LLP
Chartored Accountants
M Ramanathsn 8. Paramasivam . s
T N - i Firm Registration No. 0049155/ 200038
Chicf Financia] Officer Company Secrotary (Firm Registra )
Chi; v £
Place : Kappalur, Madurai ) Parmer 91
Date : April 22, 2019 Membership Mo.027501




ra
{
| R
|
b

L LinrTED)

3

statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2819
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

{A) Equity Share Capital
Balance at the end of April 1, 2017 402.28
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at the end of March 31, 2018 402.28
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at the end of March 31, 2018 402.28
(B} Other Equity
Particufars Ganeral Reserve Other| Retained Earnings Total
comprehensive
income
Balance as at April 1, 2047 11,625.88 1,286.07 4,567.03 17,478.76
Transfer o General Reserve 4,500.00 - {4 ,500.00) .
Additions/ {deductions} during the year - 10.89 {10.99) .
Dividend paid {363.14) {363.14)
Income tax refund for earlier years 53.10 59.10
Changes in deferred tax recognised directly in equity N 256.91 2569
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - {15.84) 778,70 762,86
Balance as at March 11,2018 16,25.66 1,281.22 87.64 18,194.49
Dividend paid . - {383.72) {363.72)
Changes in deferred tax recogrised directly in squity . 254,51 - 2431
Additions! Deductions during the year 800,00 {6.90) £593.10} .
Tolal Comprehensive Income for the year - 240.96 1,021 53 1,262.49
Halgnce s & March 312018 16,173.88 176878 852,37 14 38777

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and ont behalf of the Board of Dhrectors of ¥ TM Limited

T. Kannan

Chairman & Managing Director

M Ramanathan

Chief Financtal Officer

Place : Kappatur, Madurai
Date @ April 22,2019

As per our report of even date attached
For ONGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis

{Firm Registration No 0044155/ 8200036)

RM. Somasundaram
Director

S. Paramasivam
Company Secratary Chinrsamy Ganesan
Partner

Membership No 627561
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Corporate falarmsuen

VTM Limited was established in 1946 with the founding principles of setting standards
in weaving by ensuring that the best of weaving technology was always available,
Today, the Company is well-established with unique capabilities that allows to cater to
exotic constructions in weaving. It has also expanded the capabilities to include special
weaves and combinations, 254 state-of-the-art looms take pride of place  the
manufacturing unit. 92 Sulzer machines, 147 Air jets , 9 Jacquard and 6 Rapier
machines work in tandem to produce 1.65 miltion meters of fabric every month. It is also
equipped with adequate equipment to cater to special fabric manufacturing in fine
counts and complex specifications.

Basis of preparation of finascial statements Statement of Compliznoe

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') {to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 ofthe Actread with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles {GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Any revision
to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Functiona! and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been
rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors

onAprii 22,2019,
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IA. Critical accounting estimates and management judgements

Inapplication of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the
Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the cartying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment
Properties are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account the
nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the asset, past
history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the management accepts the
assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation. Also,
management judgement is exercised for classifying the asset as investment properties or vice
versa.

Current tax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and
management’s judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of
relevant provisions of law.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each
reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of fiture taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Fair value

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments
where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques,
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the

reporting date.
94
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Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment assessment for trade receivabies are done based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of
impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market
conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

fmpairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)

The impairment assessment of’ non-financial assets is determined based on estimation
of recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the
recoverable amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future
cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term employee benefits

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present
value of such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this obligationis highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair vatue. The inputs to these models
arc taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree
of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as lquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the
reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the
figure estimated at end of cach reporting period.
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Recent accounting pronouncements
Standardsissued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 Leases: On March 30,2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS
116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and
related Interpretations.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019.

The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116
mtroduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and
loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.
The Company has evaluated the requirements of the above standards and the effect on the
financial statements is not considered to be significant.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit
(or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under lnd AS 12.

The etfective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is not considered to be
significant.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Inceme taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, 'Tncome Taxes', in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes.The amendment clarifies that an eatity shall
recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or
events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on orafter Aprii 1,
2019. The Company is currently evaluating the cffect of this amendment on the financial
statements.

uuuuuuuuu
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Amendment to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement: On March 30,
2019, Ministry of Corporate A ffairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee Benefits', in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.The
amendments require an entity: to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost
and net interest for the reminder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement; and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised
because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after Aprnii 1,
2019. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Currentversus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is;

1) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle. ii)Held primarily for the purpose of trading. iii)Expected to be realised
within twelve months after the reporting period, or. iv)Cash or cash equivalent
unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is current when:

1) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle. i)t is held primarily for the
purpose of trading. iii)It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or. iv)There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

97




{ 0
VTM. MITED,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3 months as its
operating cycle.

b. Fairvalue measurement

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each
reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

1) In the principal market for the asset or liability;ii) In the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
the best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highestand best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1. Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or
liabtlities ;
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Level 2;: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3:  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers
are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company's board of directors.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair value measurement is
disclosed in the relevant notes.

¢. Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership is
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the
inco-terms agreed with the customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods
including excise duty and after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on
sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.

Power Generation

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking arrangement
with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity Distribution Companies are consumed at
factories, The monetary values of such power generated that are captively consumed are not

[~
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recognised as revenue.

Exportentitlements

Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of
the exports made by the Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Sale of scrap

Scrap sale is recognised at the fair value of consideration received ot receivable upon transfer
of significant risk and rewards. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise duty
exciuding applicable taxes on sale.

Interest lncome

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial Hability. When calculating the effective
interestrate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Rental Income
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is established by
the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d. Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Presentation
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific

IOOE




. S
: VTM LIMITE ﬁj

useful lives, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profitor loss as incwred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet
date, are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the
tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work
in progress.

Component Cost

All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been
accounted separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and
wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful
life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs
and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incarred.

Machinery spares / insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed
assets and their issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is
charged to revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful
life on a written down value method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset,
or other amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual value.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule H
to the Companies Act, 201 3.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such
additions. For deletion / disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the
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date on which such assets have been discarded / sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing
Rs.5,000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method as follows:

(i) Raw materials, packing materials and consumables: At purchase cost including other
cost incurred in bringing materials/consumables to their present location and condition.

(i) Work-in-process and intermediates: At material cost, conversion costs and appropriate
share of production overheads

(iif) Finished goods: At material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate share of
production overheads. Excise Duty is exempted on finished grey goods.

g) Financial Instrnments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurementAll financial assets are recognised initially at fair value.
However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are also added to
the cost of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company conmits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurementFor purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are
classified on the basis of their contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity's business

model of managing them.
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For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
» Debt instruments at amortised cost
« Dcbt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

« Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

« Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised costThe Company classities a debt instrument as at amortised
cost, if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debtinstrument at FYTOCI
The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b)  Theasset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive mcome (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes finance income, impairment losses and reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
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income using the EIR method.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL
The Company classifies ali debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization
asatamortizedcostoras FVTOCI, asat FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity mvestments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fatr value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classtfied as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes an
irrevocable election of classifying the equity tnstruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all
subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI, without any recycling of the amounts from OCl to
profitand loss, even on sale of such imnvestments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual
terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed
below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans given fo employees and others, deposits, interest receivable,
unbilled revenye and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVT0C Equity investments in companies ofher than subsidiaries and associates if an option
exercised at the time of initial recogrition.

FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments, mutual funds, forward exchange contracts fto the
extent not designated as a hedging instrument].

Derecognition
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in fuli without material delay to a third party
under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated lability. The transferred asset and the
associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with [nd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised coste.g.,
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

b)  Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCIc)Trade
receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss aliowance on:
. Trade receivables or contract revenue recetvables; and
. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit
Loss {ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
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For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. I credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
mmpairment loss aliowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit Josses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within {2 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension,
call and stmilar options} over the expected life of the financial instrument and Cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
ferms.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income / expense in
the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses’ in the
profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various financial instruments is
described betow:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carTying amount.
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance
from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instraments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCLL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a
timely basis.
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For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each
reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar
credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the followingbasis:

Name of the financial asset Impairment Testing Methodology

Trade Raceivables Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) s applied. The ECL over lifetime of the assets are
estimated by using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting
current conditions and forecasts of future sconomic conditions which are groupad on the
basis of similar credit characteristics such as nature of industry, customer segment, past
due status and other factors that are relevant fo estimate the expected cash loss from
these assets.

Other financial assets When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. When there is significant change in credit fisk since inifial recognition, the
impairment is measured based on probability of default over the lifeti me. i, in a subsequent
period, credit quafity of the instrument improves such that thera is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising

i impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial labilities at FVTPL and as
atamortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial Habilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial mstruments.

The measurcment of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financialliabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
tiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
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in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains / losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains / loss are not subsequently transferred to profit
and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumaulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
company has not designated any financial lability as at fair value through profitand loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or Joss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Derivative financialinstruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and
options contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency
exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss
This category has derivative financial assets or fiabifities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company befieves that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not
designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or
financtal liabifity, at fair value through profitorfoss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or ioss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are
included in other income, Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current assets / current liabilities if
they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.

108




!
i
§
¢

i_h T™M i.xi}.ii'i'i_{i)é

Derecognition of financiat liabilities

A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires.
When an existing financial liability is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an exisiing fiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or foss.

Reclassification of financiaf assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabifities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model formanaging those assets. Changes to the business model are expected {o be infrequent. The Company's
senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which
are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to exiernal parties. A change in the
business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant o its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets. it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
raclassification date which is the firstday of the immediately next reporting pericd following the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
Iosses) orinterest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

"8.No | Originat Revised Accounting treatment
: classification classification
K Amortised cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured atrec  lassification date. Difference between
i previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in the profit or loss.
L2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair vaiue al reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying :
; amount. IR is caleulsted based on the new gross carrying amount. :
T3 T Amorised cost VIO Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair valug is recognised in OCI. No change in
EiR due to reclassification.
4 FVTOCH 1 Amortised cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
camying amount. However, cumdlative gain or logs in 0C1 is adjusted
i against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had
: always been measured at amortised cost. :
| ;
5 L EVTPL i FVIOC Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new camrying amount. Ne
other adjustment Is required. ;
6 ! Assets continye to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
! previously recognized in OCI is reclassified {o PAL at the reclassification
LFRyTOC FVTPL date.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and therc
1s an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

stmultaneously.
h}  Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional
cutrency spot rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies forrecognition. However,
for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the
actual rate at the date of'the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising
on settlernent or franslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in QCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with Foreign
currency fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange
confract is amortized as expense or income over the Jife of the contract. In case of monetary
items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any profit or loss
arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized as income or expense for
that year.

i) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Iuterest Rate method,
amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
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Botrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost
eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such
cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted average rate of borrowing
cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The amount
of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the period does not exceed the amount
of borrowing cost incutred during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

D Government Grants
Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions are complied with,

In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a systematic basis over the period
for which it is intended to compensate an expense and is disclosed under “Other operating
revenue” or netted off against corresponding expenses wherever appropriate. Receivables of
such grants are shown under “Other Financial Assets”. Export benefits are accounted forin the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.
Receivables of such benefits are shown under “Other Financial Assets”™.

Government grants related to assets, are adjusted in the carrying amount of the related assets.

k) Taxes
Current incometax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
{from or paid fo the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
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profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising from
carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of
deferred tax liabality.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the Hability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either 1n other comprehenstve income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OClor directly in equity.

Deterred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities are offset 1f a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax habilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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I} Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payabie to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to
be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined
benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings
through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss 1n subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be carried forward
to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no
liability towards compensated absences are recognised in these financial statements.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.
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m) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains} a lease is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if
fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified inan arrangement.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Company is classified as a finance lease. Al other leases are operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaming balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the
Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Aleased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

n) Impairmentof non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 1s
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverabic
amount 1s the higher of an asset's or cash-generating umt's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable

amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

0)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
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benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax
rates that reflects the risks specific to the Hability. When discounting is used, an increase in the
provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is
doubtful in the judgement of the management.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of
contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description
of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable,
an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the
financial statements.,

p)  Cashand cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q) CashFlow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments.
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Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the etfects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of Cash tlow statement.

r}  Earningspershare

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period atiributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number
of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and alse weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a later date, Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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Nowes io Fipancial Sstoments for fhe vesr endye

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Irf
..

LIMITED,

a4 Muarch 331, 2819

&g Asat
March 3, 2013 March 31, 2018
Capital work in progress N4 f78.67
""""" X 61867
§  Mon-current invastments
investmant in ofther companies at FVTOCI
Quoted
Myl Commodity Exchangs of India Lig [65 jprevaus year 69} equity shares of Rs 15 each fully i 245
paid}
Unguoted ©
Thiggarajar Mills Private Limitad el 159266
{70,540 {pravioys year | 70, 140) equity shares of Rs. 10 sach fully paid]
Colkour Yarns Limited e 1540
1108 000 (previous yaar 106 000} aquity shars of Rs.10 each fuily paid]
intagrates Hi-Tach Limited .08
[1,800 {previous yesr 1,800) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid)
Tetesys Softwars Limited S0 0.63
[149, 0080 yprevinus year 19,0001 squity shares of Rs, 10 sach fully paid]
SHAA Textie Processing Centre bid 324.25
[12.840 {12840} equity sharas of Rs 10 aach Rully paid)
OFG Power Generation Limited 173
LNl (prenvigiss vear 22,7000 equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid]
o 1,387.1
* Fair values have been delermined 1o the extent of information available with the Company in
respect of the investments in uniisted companies. In e opinion of the maragement, e Impact
of fair value changes, if any, is nol considerad i ba rmaterial.
Total non-gurrant investments
Aggregate amourd of quated investments 0.48
Aggregate markat value of quoted myestments 048
Aggregate cost of unquoted investmens 2343
Agorsgeis amount af imparrment in value of invesiments -
T Non-current Loans [at amortisad cost)
Secuved - considared good -
Unsecured - considered gaod 10
Loans which have sigrificant incrgase in credit risk -
Loans « Credit impaised - -
8 Other non-currant financial assets I .- B 1001
{Unsecured, considered good)
Sacuity teposits T 7550
s 78.50
g Qther non-current assets
ilinsecured, consigared goad)
Advance incame tax qnet of provision for 1ax) Fi.24
61.24
10 inwantorias
Raw Materigis - Vars EiT R 2160
Work-in-progress
Yarn REEH
Cloth L6862
Firizhed Products
Cipth ! 1.970.02
Wasle 125
Stares and spares 138.39
Lonsa ools 004
2,328.40




Motes to Pinancial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2018

11 Gurrent investmeonts
Invastmente carried 21 fair valua through profi or loss
Invastmient in Mutiaf Funds - Quoted
DHFL Pramarica Mutual Fund . B03.25
38| Magnum fnsta Cash Fund
Aditye Bida Sun Life Mutval Fund

Invesimants carried at amortised cost
Ir in Debent - Urguaoted
Firamar Enterprises tid L
MO (Previous year Ml Ungacurad Redsematile Non-tormertibfe Dabenturas of Re. 15 takh aach fully
paid up

Mahingri: & Mahindra Financial Servicas Lid
150 {Pravigus year M) Unsecured Redesmabla Mon-convartible Debanhires of Rs. 10 lakh each fully

paid up
T 60326
12 Trats receivailes
Secured - considersd good - -
Ursscured, considated good Feding 14 256081
Trade receivable which have signifcant intrease in credit sk - -
Trade Recetvables - Credit iinpaired . .
256061
Less: Allowance for expacted cradit toss -
2.560.61

131 Cash and rash equivalants
Cash on Hana A 172
Baiarces with Banks
- I currgnt accounts 353555
- in fixed deposit {with ongingl matedty of fess than 3 months) .

355,38

14 Other bank balances
In fixad depasits {due to malure within 12 manths from end of the raparting perod} RS 1501 51
In ear.marked acoourts

- Unpaid dividend accounts Ttz
157273
3% Current financlal asssts - Loans and Advances -
Sagurad - sensidered good -
Unsacared - consderad goog
Balances Wit JovArFAMent acthontes: G753
L.0ans and advances - ather than related partas B3
{pans and advances which have significant ingrease in cradif nek .
Loans and edvances Cradil Impaised -
16 Other Gurrant Fioancial Assets 597.28
Farward contract receivable -
17 Gthar current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)
interast recaivable Ta6
Advancs 10 supplers 45 Bl
Capital Advances -
Prepad expensas 17 43
TO.57
18 Capital
Authorised Share Capital
10.00.60,00C (Previous yvear HiUN,UG0) Equity shares of Re. 1 asch TG R

TN

lesusd Share Capital

4,012, 27 660 {Frovious yeer 4.02.27 6008 Equlty shares of Re. 1 gach 402 2R
402,28

Subscribed and fully paid up share capilal

402,27 600 (Previnus year 4 02 27 600) Equity shares of Re, 1 each 202 25

40238
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2019
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, uniess otherwise stated)

As at Asat
Marcn 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

Notes:
11 Reconcliiation of number of equity shares subserided
Halance as al the beginning of the year TR 4,02,27.800
Add: lssued duning the year -
Baiance at the end of the year 4.02,07 600 4,02,27,600

2} The Company has na Heiding or Subsidiary Companies.
3y During te last hve years immediately preceding the date of Salance Sheet, the Company has weither issued any shares as bonus shares mor for
consideration othes than cash and has not bought back any shares.

4} The Company had split #s Rs. 10/ paid up shares into Re. 1/- paid up shares in October 2112
%)  Righis, prefersncas and restretions in respact of equity shares issued by the Company

a. The company has issued orly one class of equity shares having a par vaiue of Re. 1 each. The eguity shares of the company having par value of Re. 1+ rark
pan-passt n all respects including voting rights 2nd entitiernent b dividend.

b. The Company decares dividend on equity shares. In the event of deciaration of interim dividend, the same s as per the decision of the Board of Directors.
Final dividend is proposad oy Board of Direclors and approved hy the sharshoiders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting.

¢ in tha event of hquidation. shareholders will be antified o seceive the remaining assels of the company after distribution of alf preferential amounts. The
distibution will be proportionate to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder,

6} Sharehoiders holding more than 5% of the total share capilat

Name of the shareholder 31 Warch 2019 31 March 21§
Mo.cfshares]  %ofl  No. of shares % of
haid hcidin& haidi _holding|

75,20.000 18.69
75,00,000 18.64
61.90,000 15.38
26,768,000 6.66

T.Kannan, Partner, Guruvayoarappan Investments
T.Kannan, Pariner, Avittam Investmentis
T.Kannan, Pariner, Karumutiy investments

Mfs. Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited

o 25 e
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Netes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

&g at As at
Maroh 31 2019 March 31, 2018

19 Other Equity
General Reserve 16,126.66
Other Comprehansive tncome 128122
Profit and Loss Account : 77 61
10,347 77 18,194.49
aj Genoral Reserve
Balance al the beginning of the year 11.625.66
Additons during the year J 4 50000
Deductionsiadiustments during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year o teTases 16,125.66
b) Other comprehansive income
Balance at the beginning of the year i 1,286.07
Additiors during the yeat {15.84}
Changes in deferred tax recognised directly in eguity .
Deductions! Adjustments during the year : 10.99
Baiance at the end of e ysar LIRS 1,281.22
¢} Profit and loss account
Balanca at the beginning of the year 4567.03
Nat profit for the period 178,70
Dividend paid and the taxes thereon (38314}
fricome tax refund received for earfier years 5810
Changes in deferrad tax recognised directly in aquity - 25691
Transter from Other Comprehensiva income {1098
Transfer tg Generat Reserve {4,500.00}
Balance at the end of the year T07.61
20 Won-Cument Liahilities - Financial Liabiiities: Borrowings
Secured
From Banks ** ST 759
54378 775.91
* Terms of loan and Security detalls

1) Term loan availed from Exim Bank of india by securing first charge on the spacific assets procured under ATUF Scherne - repayable in § years an half yearly
basis, cummencing from December 2016,

2 Term loan avaiied from Exim Bank of India by securing first charge on the specific assels procured under ATUF Scherme - repayable in 5 years on half yeary
basis, commencing from September 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As al As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

21 Othat nos-current financial Labilities

Lease rent advance 242
Lease prepayment liability 533.08
95.50
22 Deferred Tax Liability
On fixed assets 359 495
Remeasuremenl of irancial assets 20 868.25
BE3.67 1.028.20
Deferred Tax Asset
Gratuity and feave encashment EERE 4027
4714 40.27
Net deferred tax liabifity RALRK 87 .93
315 53 987.93
23 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micrg enterprises and smal! enterprises AR 3367
EAFA R I3LEY

Dues to Micro and Smaft Enferprises have bean determined to the exient such paries heve been identifisd on the bagis of information collected by the
management reprasents the principal armount payable fo these enterprises. Thete are no infarest due and outstanding as at the reporhing date. Please refer
nota 42.

24 (Other current financiat liatitities
Sepurity Deposits 2 193
213 1.93

25 Other current {iabilities

Curment maturities of long-tenm debls 74
Unpaid dividends " B7.44
Emplovee nayabies 8507 29.65
Forward Contract payable : N
Rermunergtion payable to Chairman ang MD 56,00
455,53 493.93
25 Provisions
Proyision for gratulty P20E 115.23
12147 115.23
2T Revenie from operations
Sala of Products
Cloth 15,885.18
Yarr and cloth waste 34913
16,334.29
Other Uparating Revenua
Foreign exchange gain (het) 4612
Duty drawback R gz241
1587984 16,462.52
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A et As at
Maron 31, 2049 March 31, 2018

28 Other income

interest incoma 4287
Dividand ihcoma
From Non-Current tnvestments A3 37.80
From Currant investmenls - a.0t
{ncome on fair valuation of investment in mutual funds ; 1.58
Profif on sale of fised assets 43.57
Profit on sale of nvestments 344 96
Mark to market gain on forwarg confracts -
Cither non aperating income 4362
-
25 Cost of majerials consumead - Yam
Opening stock Fi424
Add : Purchases 11.73399
Less - Closing Stock T4 60
11,786.63
30 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and finished goods
Opening stock of
Wark-in-progress
Yamn 408.70
Cleth in Process 85.16
Finished goods
Clath 72553
Waste 1h 073
AT 1,220.12
Closing stock of
Work-in-progress
Yarn 310.81
Cloth in Process 8562
Finished goods
Cloth 1,070.02
Waste 125
4,467.70
{Increase) Decrease in inventories {247.58)}
31 Employes hanafits expenss
Salaries and wages 896 87
Conlribution to provident and other funds 82.86
Staff workimen welfare expenses 17767
1.452.20
32 Financa Cost
interest on Term Loans 75.65
Other bormowing cost 228
71.90
33 Depraciation and amortisation expange
Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment 682,93
682.53
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Notes to Financial Statements {or the vear ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2018

34 Other expenses

Power and fuel 726.28
Consumption of stores and spare pars 644.93
Bleaching and Processing chames - Cloth 129.82
Rent 7.89
Repairs to buildings &7.66
Repairs to machinery 124.22
insurance 18,03
Rates and taxes 832
Payment to Audifors
- &8 Auditors 5.60
- for Certification & Other Services 356
- for Raimbursement of expenses 0.34
Selfing expenses : 171414
Brokarage expenses RV 203.02
Loss on saie of fixad assels 0.13
Donations 25.60
Comaorate sosial responsibitity expenditure refer note: 33(2)} 2852
Legal and Professionat charges 13.19
Directors sittings fees and traveliing expenses 1.41
Commission to Chairman and Managing Director 5500
Miscellaneous expenses 1yt 90.18
_ ZAB4dn 2,139
34  (a) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
i Gross Amgunt required to be spent on Comorate Social Responsibility during the year 75,48 28.52
fi} Araount spent during the year on
&) Construction andf or acguisition of any asset - -
b} (hher Purposes ofher than (i} above I 28.52
L Rt 28.52
iit) Amount unspent during the year* B -
* The company is in the process of identifying eligible projects and the halance amourt will be spent on
those projects
35. Income tax
expense
{a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current iax on profits for the year 347 .10 432.00
Adjustments for current tax of prior perieds . -
Total current 34740 432.00
tax expense
Deforred tax
Deferred tax St AN
adjustments R {5.35)
Total deferred tax expensef (henefif) 31.38 {5.35)
Income tax 37559 426.65
axpense
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year endsd fFor the year ended
Barch 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
b} The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as foliows:
Profit before tax from continuing operatio: 1,400.82 1,205,
income lax expense calculated at 28.120% (2017-1 407 .83 417.
Efact of expenses/ (incame) that are not treated dift (E50.73 14,
income tax AT A 432,00
axpense

¢) income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation and & {51.273 2.49
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive incon (91,22} 249

d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended Warch 31, 2019

Deferred fax Opening Recognise  Recognised in Other Closing
{liabilities)/ assels balance din prof Comprehensive balance
in relation to: of foss income/ Equity

Property, plant, and equipm: (359.95) (248.62) . {608.57)

Expenses aliowable on payr

basis under the Income Tax Act 40.27 6.87 ) 47.14
Remeasurement of financial (670.40) .58 41257 {257.25)
Other temporary differences 215 2.15
(987.93) (241.17) 41257 (816.53
MAT Credit ) ) i )
enfitiement
Total (987.93) (241 .17) 412 57 {816.52
35 Eamings per share
Prufit for the year atiibutable to owners of the Company TI8T0
Weighted averags number of ordinary shares outstanding 402,27 500
Hasic eamings per share {Rs) 154
Diluted eamings per share (Rs) 184
3T Eamings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports L st 3.788.16
38 Expenditure in foreign currency (net of withholding tax)
Commigsion 145 4% 54.86
Traveling expenses 143 163
I W9 U Y R
3% Value of Imports calculated on C.LF basis
Components and spore parts 1R na
Capital goods i 4T 594,82
o 74554 772.04

i
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

40. Value of imported and indigenous Raw Materials and Stores and Spares consumed during the financial year and the
percentage of each to the total consumption

Particulars Year sged March 21, 2018 Year snded March 31, 2018
gl gkae Rs.in Lakhs Parcentage (%)
Walue of raw malerials consumed
smported - -
indigenous 1178663 100.00
14,786.63 100.04
Yalye of Stores and Spares Consumed
imported i3 10233 15.87
Indigenous EARE 542 .60 84.13
100.00 644,93 10000
41. Commitments and contingent liability
Particuiars As at As at
March 31, 2618 March 31, 2018
Contingent Liabilities *
Tax demands & PF Arrears under dispute 5888 58.66
Bills discounted §78.358 403.90
Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to ba executed on capital accounts
and not provided for 107 52 -

“* The management befieves, based on intemal assessment and / or legal advice, that the probability of an ulimate adverse decision and cutfiow of
resources of the company is not probable and accordingly, no provision for the same s considersd nacassary.

42 Disclosures required by the Micro, Smalt and Mediem Enterprises Devalopment {MSMED) Act,
2006 are a5 under A at As 5t

March 34, 2018 March 31, 2018
ta) The principal amount remaining unpaid at tha end of the year . -
tb) The delayed paymenis of principal amount paid beyond the appointed dats during the year - -
{c} Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act - -
{d) Mormaat Interest due and payable during the year, for delayed payments, as per the agresd terms . -
(e} Total interest acorued during the year and remaining unpaid

This information has besn deterrmined to the extent such parties have been idantified on the basis of
irformation available with the Cormpany.

43 Oparating Segments
The company is engaged in the business of “Textiles® and therefore, has only ons reportable segment in acoordance with ind AS 108 'Operating
Segmants’
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019

{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Information relating fo geographical areas
(a} Revenue from external customers

‘ yaar anred Year ended
Particulars #areh 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Indtia 193345 12,500.78
Rest of the worid 5.368.ET 3.824.51

Total 1570328 16,334.29
(b} Non current assets
The manufcaturing faciiiies of the Company are situated in India and no non-curment assets are held outside India,
{c} information about major customers
. Yaar ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2698
Number of extenal customars each contribuling more than 10% of {otal revenue 4 4
Totat revenue from the above cusiomers 161435 254362
44, Operating lease afrangements
. Year ended Yeat ended
Particulars March 3%, 2018]  March 31,2018
As Lessor

The Company has enterad into operating lease amangements for certaly surplus facifiies. The leases

are cancellabie al the option of eittier party lo lease and may be renewed ased oh miduat agreement

of the parties.

Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 115 267
Ag Lesses

The Company has entered info operating lease arrangements for cerlain faciiiies. The lsases are

canceilable at the oplion of either party 1o lease and may he renewed based on muluat agreemant of

the parties.

Lease payments recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8.15 T.89

45. Government Grants

The detafls of Government Grants received by the Company are as follows
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 20190 March 31, 2018
Duty Drawack on exports 175.38 241
Interest subvention on export inance 1567 .50

Thets ais no unfulfied conditions and other contingancies atiachad to govemment assistance that has been recognised in the financial stalements.

[F———
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 20619
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

46. Financial instruments

Capftal management

The Company managas its capital 1 2nsure 'hat entites in the Sompany will be abte ko consinue a5 going CoNCaM, while Masimising the meium &
the debt and equity batance,

The Company determines the amont of capial required on the basés of arnual opecating pans snd iong-tem predict and other strategic investmant plans. The funding requirements are
mat ihrounh sauily, iong tenm and shat-term borowangs.

For the putpases of e Company's cagital managemsan, capital indudes issued capdal and dther squily reserves attributable to the squity hoiders.

trough the optipisation of

Categories of Finencist § i Harcr 31 2049 March 31, 2018
Financial assats
A, Measurad at amortised cost

Loans (nan-currant} 00t
Othrer non-curent financiat assels 7450
Trade receivalles 2.560.61
Cash and cash ecuivaients 3\
Bank balances other than aliove 357273
Loans {cumenty 50726
Investments (eurrant) -
b Maasured at fair valus fhrough other comprehensive ncome (FYTOCY
investments (non-cument) LT 1.837.71
. Mandatorby | &t fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investragnts [ourent) 80326
Financial liabilities
a. Measured ot amortisad cost
Borrowings (noR-cument) T
Other non-cument financial lisbiies 95.50
Trage payables 33367
Other fingneial kabiiities 133
b. Mandatorily d at falr valie through profit of loss (FYYFL}
Denvative mstruments : -
Finangisl risk blectt

The reasury funchen provides sorvices to the business. co-ordinabes access o domastc and intemalional financis! markets, moniiors angd manages the financial neks relating o the
aperations thiowgh inlemal sk repods which anakyse xposures by Galres and magnitude of rishs, These risks intlude rmarket sk fncluding curency risk, infarest rate fisk and other
price risk}, credit dsk and Hquidiy ek,

Thie Company seeks 10 minimise he effacts of these rsks by using natuesl hedgsng Saancial instruments to Nadge fsk s . The use of financial derivatives is govermag by the
Cempany's pobicias approved by the board of sirechors, which provide written penciples on forelgn exchange figh. the yse of fnancial dervatives, and the investmant of arcess liquidity.
The Company dogs net enter into of trade financial instruments. inclusing dervative fironciat instruments, 'or speculstive surbosas.

Markat Hsh
Markgt gk is the risk of any loss in future earmgs, in replizatle far vaiues of in future cash fows that may result from = changs ik the prica of a Snancis! instrument. The Compary's
actvitigs supose it prmanily 0 the firandial rivks of changes in forsign ¥ axchange rates and interest rates. The Company activaly manages its cimency and intarest Tate exposures

through 45 fingnce doision and uses dedvalive nsiruments such s forward coniracls Bt cumenty swaps, whenesr fequired, to mitigate he Asks from such exposures. The usa of
denvative insiruments is subjact {0 imits and reguiar mostong by aporopnate (evels of management.

Forgign curranty risk managemend

The Company undertakes transactions denomnaled in foreign curencies, consequarsly. 4xposuzss to exchangs rate fuctuations arise. The Company actively manages its currency race
srposures through 2 centralised frezeury division and uses naturat hedging principies to mitigats tha risks fom such exposurgs. The use of damvatve instruments, #any. is subsec! o fimits
Ay requiar monionng by appropiate levels of management,
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Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2619
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The carrying amounis of the Company's foreign currency derominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting perod are as follows:

As on March 31, 2019 {all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)

Liabifities Asspis Net overall
¥ oi thal
Farticulars Gross ox| Exposurei  NelHablityl Gross exp Exposine hedger Netassetf  cumency - netl
hegged using]  exposun: oni using derfvatives) expesure on the ELETE Y
derpratives|  the currancy curen thet llabilitiex)
Trade receivabies - - . 47326 39364 9.::1 5 B2

As on March 31, 2018 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in Jakhs)

Lisbllitieys Asgels Net overall
exposure on the
Particulars Gross BXPOSUre [EXposute Mot Habillity  |Gross exposure [Exposure hedged [Net asset curmency - het
hetged using p on using gertvati posure on the assats |
derivath the y currency {net tiabilities)
Trae recelvabies - . . 4461 - JE 34991

Forelgn currency sensitivity anafysis

Mavarnent i e funchions! currencies of the various goerations of the Company against major foreian currencies may impact the Company's revenuss from its aperatons. Any weakering
o the funciional sumensy may impsct e Compaimy's cost of imparts and cost of bomowings and stnsequenty may increase the cost of fnancrg the Company's capHal axpenditres. The
foreian eachanpe rale sensitvity 18 colediaied for each curvency by agg:ega&on of Ine ret toraign axchange tate expdsure of & curenty and & simultanecus paralel forgign gxchargs rates
shift in the foreign exchange rates of each cymrency by 24, which ni's wertt of the reasonably possie change in foreign exchange ratss. The sensiivity
anzlysis inclutes onty oufstanding foraign sumency tenominated moneiary ilems and adiusts Thair tanslabon 2t the penad end for @ 2% changs i forign curmency rates. The eatimated
sensitivity impact wilt be around +- Rs. 2 lakhs (Previcus yoar Rs. .82 lakhs), which is consulered to be immaterial to the size of cperations of the Company.

in managament's cpinion, e sensiivity analysis is unrap tative of ine | t forsgn exchanga fisk because the exposure at e eng of the reporting pesipd does not rflect tha
exposure dutng the woarn

Credit rigk management

Credit rlek ahses wheh @ sustomsr i counterpary does not meet s obligations under & customer cenbract o financsal instriment, Ieading to & financigl loss. The Company 1§ exposed ta
wredit risk from ity operating aclvities primarily trade receivables and from s financing! investing activies. induring depesits with Sanks, mutual fund investments, investman!s 1 debt
securities and foreign Bxchange ansscions. The Sompany has no significant concentration of credit Ask with any counlepanty.

Exposirs 1o credit risk
Trig catrving amount of Friancial assets epresants the maximum credi exposere. The mandmiem exposud is e total of the carying amount of baiances with hanks, shor term daposits
with hanks, trade receivables. margin mpnay and othar fnancial assets axcleding sty invesiments

{a) Trade Recelvables

Trade reCanvahles ame conskstng of o lame number of customers The Company has credit evabuation policy for sach customer and, based on the svaluation. credit mit of each Justomer
i oafined Wheraver e Dompary asseases the cradit s as high, the expasurg is backed by either han. guaranieefieter of credit of securty deposis.

The Company doas nat have higher coacantation of credit risks o a single custormer. As per simpified approsch, the Company makes povision of sxpectd credit iosses on frada

fechivalies ysing @ provision matix io mitigate e risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision ai each reporting date wherever culstanding is for longer period and
frvnivas highar nsk.

{b} tments, Darivative instr ts, Cash and Cash Equivaients and Bark Deposits
Credit Risk on cash ang ¢ash aguwalents, deposits with the bards/finanaia; instilutions 15 generatly low as the said deposits have baer made with the banksfinanciat insitutions. who have
boen assignad High credit rating by irtermational and domestic rating a0andios.

Credit Risk on GCervatve IRetumants 15 generaily law a5 the Company anters iro the Dervalive Confracts with the feputed Banks.
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(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Irvastments of sumis funds are mads ooty wilh approved Financiat insiutionsrCounterparty, invesmmants nrimarity nciude invesiment in weits of quoted hutuzl Funds, gueted Bonds,
MenConvertble Oabentures issued by GovemmentSemi-Govemment AgenciesiPSt) SondaHign Investment grade Coiporates eto. Thesa Mutual Funds and Counterparties have Tow
wredit risk. The Company has standsrd operating procatures and investment policy for deployment of surplus Tauidity, which allows investment in datit securities and mutual fund schemes
of debt and aroitrage nategories and msticls e SxDOSUTE I BGUItY Markets.

DfFeasting refated disciosures
Offsatting of cash and cash squivaients o burowings as per the foan agreement is avaiiobls only tathe bank i tha event of & defauit. Campaty does ot have the rght i cffsatin case of
the counter parly's bankuptey, ihereiore, these distiosires are ot raquired.

Liguidiy risk managemant

Liguidity isk refers %o the rigk that the Companty canngt mas! its financial oblsgations. Yhe obieckve ef liquidity sk management is In maintain sufficient fiquidity and ensure that funds are
avaiiable for use 28 per raguirarants. The Company nvests fls surpius fundg i bark fixet daposit and mutuat funds, WhiGh Carmy fminimal mark to market fisks, The Compary alse
constantly monttors funding opbans avaiiable in the dabt and capital merkets with a view o mainlaning financal fexliy.

Liguidity tables
The fotiowins tahles detall the Company's remaining contractuat maturity for its non-derivatve financiat abrites with agresd rapayment pericds. The tables hava been drawn up based on
the unSCOUNES tash flows of finandial iaikties based on the eariest dats on which the Sompany can be required 1o pay.

March 31, 2019 Duewn 1sryear  Duein 2ndio St Due aher S year  Carrying amount
Y8
Bomowings 26607 775491 - 76583
Trade payables 2i2.13 - 212,12
470.28 7750 - 981.9¢
March 34, 2018 Duein istyear Duein 2ad ta 5th  Due afier Sthyear  Carrying amount
year
Bormwings M4 77591 1,117 65
Trade payables 33387 - - 33387
67541 775,91 - 1,451.32

Mareh 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Fair vaiue of financiat assets and financial abilities that are not measured af fair '] Nil
value [but fair value disclosures are required):

4. Retated party disciosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

Holding company The Company does not have any hoiding company

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures The Company does not have any subsiciaries, assosiates and joint ventures
Key Management Personniel and their Relatives

Sri TKannan Chairman and Managing [Hrector

D Smt) Uma Kannan Birector

Sri. K. Thiagarajan Direttor

31 R Krishnan Chisf Financial Officer {1 January 31, 2119}

Sr M Ramanathan Chief Finangial Officar (from February t, 2018)

31 8 Paramasivam Company Secretary

Entarprises in which Key Management Peraonnel and their Relatives have significant influence
Thiagarajar Mills (1 Lig.
Tamaraiseivi Finance (P} Lid.
Kalaithanthai Karurruttu Thiagarae Chetiar Memorial Charitabie Trust
Thiagarsjar Coftege of Engingering
Thiagaraiar Coliege
Colowr Yams Limited
Samy Autemobile
Sivaiami Taxtiie Traders (P} Lid.
Thiagarajar Rubbers Private Limited e ——
Sundaram Textites 130
Katumutt Invastments
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b}. Transactions during the year

S.No.

MNature of transactions

Year enced
March 31, 2019

Yaar andad
March 31, 2018

Thiagarajar Mills {F} Ltd.
Purchase of Materiats
Sale of Materials
Availing of Servicas
Rendering of Services

Tamaraizselvi Finance (P Lid.
Availing of Services
Kalaithanthat Karumuttu Thiagaraja Chettiar Memonai
Chatitable Trust
Contributions
Thiagarajar College of Engineering
Availing of Sarvices
Thiagarajar College
Cortributions
Colour Yarns Limited
Avaiting of Services
Sivakami Textile Traders (P) Lid.
Avaiting of Services

3,762.24

2.505.28

g5.00
28.53
1.18

4.80

2500

1.58

2.63

362.70
20.63
118

480

25.00

0.26

2786

1.55

5.No.

Nature of transactions

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

1

12

13

Thiagaraiar Rubbers Private Limited
Avatling of Sarvices

Sri T. Kannan
Remuneration
Availing of Services

Or.{Smi} Uma Kannan
Sitling Feos
Sri. K Thiagarajan
Bitting Fees
SH.R.Krishnan (CFO)-From April 2018 to January 2019,
Remuneration
Contribution to PF and Other Funds

Sri M Ramanathan (CFO) From February 20189,
Remuneration
Contribution to PF and Cther Funds

Sr & Pararmasivam (CS}
Remunaration
Contribution to PF and Other Funds

1.23

56.00

0.12

0.24

11,80
0.37

1.28
2.05

396
0.18

55.00

002

024

3.96
018

¢} Balances at the end of the year

5.No.

Narme of the related party

A at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

S T. Kannan
Remuneration payabte

56.00

55.00
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48. Retirement benefit plans

Definad cortribution plans

in accordance with Indian law, eligitle empioyees of the Company are enlited 1o recaive benefifs in respect of provident fund, » defined coniribution plan, in which
both employses and the Company make monthly contributions at a specifisd percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under
the faw, are mada to the Provident funtd a3 well as Employes State insurance Fund.

The tata! expense recognised in profit or less of Rs. 59,36 jakhs {for the year ended March 31, 2018. Rs. 86.66 lakhs} represents contribution payahle to these
plans by the Company al rates specified in the riles of the plan.

Defined benefit plans

{a) Gratuity

Gratully is payable as per Payment of Gratully Act. 1972, In ferms of the same. gratuity is computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic saiary inciuding
deamess Allowancs if any} by completed years of continuous service with pan thareof in excess of six months and again by 1526 The Act provides for 2 vesting
periad of § years for withdrawal and retirement and & monetary cefing en graluity payabie to an employes on separation, a5 may be prescribed under the
Payment of Graluity Act, 1872, from fime to time. However, in cases where an enferprise has more favourabla temns in this regard, the same has been adopted,

These plans typically expose the Company lo actuarial risks such as: investment risk, inferest rate risk and salary risk,

Investment fisk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabillty is calculated vsing a discount rate
determined by reference to the marke! wislds on government bonds denominated in Indian
Rupees. If the aciual ratum on plan asset is below {his rate. it wé] create g plan defict

Interest fisk A detresse in the bend interest rate will increase the plan Hability, However, this will be partially
offiset by an increase in the retum on the plan's debt investments.
Longevily tisk The present value of the defined benefit plan Sability is caicuiated by reference 1o the best|

estimate of the mortality of plan pariicipants toth during and after their employment. Ar increasa)
in the kife expectancy of the plan participants wilt increase the olan's liabiiity,

Satary risk The present vaive of the defined benefit plan liabiity is caloulated by reference to the future
salaries of plan paricipants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants wil
increase the plans labiity,

The principat assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particuiars March 3%, 2013 Mareh 31, 2018
Discount Rate 7.69% p.a. 1.71%pa.
Rate of increase in compensation level 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Atirition Rate 100% n.a. 1.00% pa.

=
Expected Rate of Retum on Plan Assets 76%%pa T71%p.a.

The estimates of future salay increasss, considersd in actuarial valuation. take account of inflation, semiority, promotion and other refevant factors. such as supply
and demand in the employment market

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respact of these defined _-’e'iar_’c‘h . Emél uar;h ?1‘;10(;3
henefit pians are as foliows: Hg - 4 5. In 3
Amount recoghised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss: -
Current sarvice cost ?.%
Net interest supenss o ‘35}
Return on plan assets [axcluding amounts inchuded in net interest expanse) X
Components of dafined beneft custs recognised in profit of loss 16.49
Amount racoguised in Other Comprehensive income (OC!) for the Year
Hemeasurement an the net defined benefit liability compeising: 058
Aetuarial (gains iosses recognised during the period ~ :
Companents of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprahensive inCome 10.95
1224 1718

Totat

§ Cyrfent service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee Berefits Expense’ in profit or ioss.
i, The remaasurement of the net defined benefit fabifity is included i other comprehensive ingome.
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The amoust included in the balance sheet arising from tha Company’s obfigation Re i Lawers Rs. In Lakhs

in respect of its defined benefit plans is s follaws:

i A
Prasent value of definad benefit abligation 1(251 ;fg}
Fair vatue of plan assels . i
. e 115,
Ne lizbifity arising from defined benefi obligation
12147 115.23
Funded 21aT
124.47 115.23
The above provisions are reflected under Provision for employee benefits' {short-term
provisions) {Refer note 26]
Movements in the present valtue of the defined benefit obligation in the cusTent year were a5 foliows:
- 11847
Cpening gefined benefit obligation gl
Fun:ent gen:me rost 798
mie.es.t U?St_ 10.64
Actuasial ‘gg!ns]ﬂusses (20,04}
Benefits pad { oa
- i23.54 .
Closing defined beneft obligation 23.5
Movemants in the falr value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

p ; gn 283
Cpening fair value of pian assets _ i
Irterest ncome . 0.55
Expetied retun on plan assets {excluding amgunts included in net intarest expense) 2*.5(;
Confribions fzd: G o
Benafits paid 2
Actuanat gamsiioss) {0535}
Ciosing fair value of plan assels 5.38
Sensitivity analysis
A Discount Rate + 50 BP 8. :% £.19%
Definen Berefit Obtigation [PYO] 6.0 11803
Current Service Cost 9.51 8.95
B, Disoount Rate - 50 B8P T T.15%
Defined Banefit Obligation [PVO] 12766 12849
Current Service Cost 10,80 11.41
C. Satary Esealation Rate + 50 8P 5.56% 5.50%
Pefined SBenafit Obligation [PV} 12785 12968
Cureant Service Cost 1040 1143
D. Salary Escatation Rate - 50 BP 4.50% 4.50%
Defined Benefit Obfigation (FV0] 1576 4787
Current Service Cost 948 982

{b] Compensated ahsences

As per the poficy of the Company, compensated ahsences are not entified to be carred forward to the subsequent financial year and lagse al the end of the
raparting period. Acoordingty, na Habitity lowards compensated absences are racegnised in these financial stetements.

The accompanying notes fortn an integral part of the financial ststements
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of YTM Limited

As per our report of even date attached

T. Kannan BM. Semasundaram For CNG(S::I f: -::ds;ciates :Jai':)

. ) : ) arte ceountants

Chairrnant & Managing Director Drrector (Firm Registration No.004%1 57 $200036)
M Ramanathan S, Paramasivam

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Chinnsamy Ganesan

Partner

Membership No.J27501

Place : Kappalor, Matdumi 1
Date @ Apri 22, 2019 3
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